Approved: ___February 11,2010

Date
MINUTES OF THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY AND FISCAL OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chairman Mike Burgess at 3:37 p.m. on February 10, 2010, in
Room 546-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except Chairman Morrison, who was excused.

Committee staff present:
Renae Jefferies, Office of the Revisor of Statutes
Cody Gorges, Kansas Legislative Research Department
Gary Deeter, Committee Assistant

Conferees appearing before the Committee:
Gary Allsup, Executive Director, Kansas Housing Resource Corporation

Others attending:
See attached list.

The minutes for the February 9 meeting were approved. (Motion by Representative Ruiz and seconded by
Representative Sloan)

Gary Allsup, Executive Director, Kansas Housing Resource Corporation (KHRC), provided an overview of
the KHRC, a quasi-governmental agency created by executive order in 2003 to address the housing needs of
Kansans (Attachment 1). He said the agency serves as primary administrator for federal housing programs
on behalf of the state of Kansas. The agency receives no operational revenue from the state, has its own board
of directors, and is solely funded by federal contracts, grants, and program administration fees, funds which
are channeled to meet the housing needs of Kansas citizens (Attachments 2 and 3). He noted that the agency
is also administering six programs totaling about $135 million through the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Attachment 4).

Mr. Allsup stated that the agency also oversees the State Housing Trust Fund, another resource to provide for
housing needs of the state’s citizens. The Trust Fund receives its funding from two sources: through fees
generated by issuing Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, and through discretionary dollars from the
KHRC; the Trust Fund is used to support housing needs or gaps not covered elsewhere by federal or state
programs. Mr. Allsup commented that the agency is making a voluntary transfer of $2 million to the State
General Fund (SGF) to support funding shortfalls in the state budget; the transfer is a part of the rescission bill
currently making its way through the legislature.

Mr. Allsup referenced the 2010 Housing Guide and the 2008 Annual Report to illustrate the programs provided
by the agency (Attachments 5 and 6). He stated that the agency has become a “one-stop shop” for the state’s
housing programs, and, although a decrease in funding is expected from the U. S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development, the agency is fiscally stable and will continue its services with the exception of
discretionary support for the Trust Fund.

Unless specifically noted, the individual remarks recorded herein have not been transcribed verbatim. Individual remarks as reported herein have not been submitted to

the individuals appearing before the committee for editing or corrections. Page 1




CONTINUATION SHEET

Minutes of the House Government Efficiency and Fiscal Oversight Committee at 3:37 p.m. on February
10, 2010, in Room 546-S of the Capitol.

Mr. Allsup responded to members’ questions, saying that:

. The federal reductions are similar to what is occurring in other states.

. When the KHRC has excess funds, it transfers some of the funds to the Trust Fund. Some counties also
provide monies for the Trust Fund.

. Previous to the creation of the KHRC, the programs were funded through other state agencies, such as

the Kansas Department of Commerce; thus the programs drew on SGF monies. The present
arrangement frees the state from providing SGF funding for administering federal programs.

. A pilot program, the Housing Development Grant Program, provides state funding for county housing
initiatives; plans are to expand the program state-wide. Currently, however, the $2-million transfer to
the SGF recommended by the Governor will suspend these services to counties.

. ARRA has allocated $8 million to address the needs of homelessness; these funds are still in process
of distribution.

. The Revolving Loan program has been moved to the Energy Office.

. The fee-for-service administration of the federal programs totals $3.5 million, with another $1.6 million

received for administering the grant programs. However, many other agency services are administered
without receiving any fees. All these funds are federal dollars; the agency receives no state or private

funding.

. The depreciation amount ($130,000) on the financial report includes office furniture, vehicles, and
computers.

. The weatherization program excludes bank participation; the banks are involved in the revolving loan
program.

The Vice-Chair announced two bill hearings for the next day and adjourned the meeting at 4:17 p.m. The next
meeting is scheduled for February 11, 2010.

Unless specifically noted, the individual remarks recorded herein have not been transcribed verbatim. Individual remarks as reported herein have not been submitted to
the individuals appearing before the committee for editing or corrections. P age 2
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KANSAS HOUSING

RESOURCES CORPORATION ™

TESTIMONY BEFORE THE GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY

AND FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
February 10, 2010

Gary Allsup, KHRC Executive Director

Introduction

Chairman Morrison and Members of the Committee, as our nation has endured record numbers
of foreclosures, high unemployment, and the near collapse of the housing and financial markets
this past year, Kansas has not been immune from these concerns. In addition, Kansas
communities continue to recover from natural disasters that devastated thousands of homes in
2007. For these reasons, the need for affordable, safe, and decent housing in Kansas has never
been greater. With this in mind, as Executive Director of the Kansas Housing Resources
Corporation (KHRC), I am proud to present this overview of a corporation that continues to meet
ever-changing challenges, while remaining financially viable, self-sufficient, and flexible. In
addition to my testimony, your packets include several documents which provide detailed
information regarding the Kansas Housing Resources Corporation.

e 2008-2009 Audited Financial Statements

e 2010 Financial Plan

e 2010 Housing Resources Guide
e ARRA Programs Report
e 2008 Annual Report
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Background of KHRC

Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) is a quasi-governmental corporation
established by Governor's Executive Reorganization Order (ERO) #30 and pursuant to K.S.A.
74-8904(v). KHRC serves as the primary administrator of federal housing programs on behalf of
the State of Kansas. KHRC does not receive any operational revenue from the state, but rather
sustains itself through federal contracts for service and program administration fees. KHRC’s
mission is to enhance Kansas communities with housing opportunities. KHRC has its own

Board of Directors and operates independently of the Kansas Development Finance Authority.

KHRC Financial Operations

A copy of KHRC’s audited financial statements is provided and is available on KHRC’s website

at www.kshousingcorp.org. As a self-supporting entity which receives no appropriation from the

State for administrative costs, KHRC recovers expenses through fees for services and
administrative cost reimbursement from the administration of federal grants. KHRC’s Annual
Financial Plan is drafted, reviewed, and adopted by its Board of Directors before the
commencement of each fiscal year. The Financial Plan itemizes anticipated revenues and
proposed expenses by program, and as a policy, total Financial Plan activity must be balanced.
Revenues and expenses are tracked regularly to ensure adherence to the Financial Plan. Monthly
financial statements and reports are prepared and presented to the Board to review adherence to

the Financial Plan and provide an awareness of KHRC’s financial position.

In addition to KHRC’s role as the administrator of federal housing programs, KHRC also
administers the State Housing Trust Fund (SHTF). In your review of our financial plans and
reports, you will notice that KHRC Operations and the SHTF are reported separately. This two-
fund presentation improves and enhances financial management of resources and reporting for

timely and effective decision-making and analysis.
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KHRC Operations Fund

KHRC' Operations Fund is derived from federal fee-for-service activities and federal grant
administration income. KHRC Operations does not receive any State General Fund or other
state funds. Additionally, over the next three fiscal years KHRC will manage over $135 million
in federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) allocations that provide financial
assistance for Tax Credit developments, improve energy efficiency, help reduce homelessness,
and expand community action activities across the state. Some of these programs provide
administrative dollars, while others provide no administrative dollars or have a matching

requirement for every administrative dollar spent.

State Housing Trust Fund

State Housing Trust Fund activities include activities and resources KHRC receives based solely
on KHRC’s designation as the provider of housing services for the State of Kansas. For
example, SHTF funding sources include receipt of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bond
(MRB) bond issuance fees, private activity bond multi-family bond issuance fees, transfers from
KHRC Operations, and specific purpose (restricted) state allocations for disaster assistance ($5
million in FY 2008) and housing development grant programs ($4 million each in FY 2008 and
FY 2009). Please note that KHRC has not charged any administrative fee for the expenses

incurred in the operation of either of these state-funded housing programs.

Historically, Trust Fund discretionary dollars have been provided by two funding sources:
transfers from KHRC Operations and the receipt of MRB bond issuance fees. These
discretionary sources are used to fund program needs or gaps not covered elsewhere by federal
or state program dollars and include programs such as the Kansas Accessibility Modification
Program (KAMP) and Emergency Repair Program (ERP). Since KHRC was established in
2003, KAMP and ERP serve very low-income Kansans and have been funded by the SHTF.. In
addition, the SHTF has funded landlord-tenant counseling, housing community development,

development loans and grants, and emergency loans and grants.

[~



In recent years KHRC Operations Fund transfers have been virtually the only discretionary
funding source for the SHTF. You may also be aware that a $2 million transfer from the
Housing Trust Fund to the State General Fund is included in the rescission bill which is currently

working its way through the legislature.

ARRA Activity

Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) currently administers six programs that were
either impacted or created by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA).
These programs include the following: State Energy Efficient Appliance Replacement Program,
Kansas Weatherization Assistance Program, Housing Credit Exchange Program, Tax Credit
Assistance Program, Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program, and Community
Services Block Grant Program. The attached report contains a summary of each program, the
impact of ARRA, and the current status of program expenditures.

e Weatherization Assistance Program... $56,441,771

e Housing Credit Exchange Program ... $45,098,154

e Tax Credit Assistance Program ... $17,121,110

o Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Program... $8,360,995

e Community Service Block Grant ... $8,161,336

o State Energy Efficient Appliance Replacement ... $2,688,559

KHRC Housing Programs

Another addendum provided today is a 2010 Housing Resources Guide. This guide provides a
brief summary of the housing programs offered by KHRC. In the guide you will find
information on the state-funded, Housing Development Grant Program (the subject of the
rescission bill mentioned earlier), as well as federally funded homeownership program,
homeowner rehabilitation program, rental development programs such as HOME and the Low

Income Housing Tax Credit, and supportive services programs, such as Emergency Shelter
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Grant, Community Services Block Grant, Tenant Based Rental Assistance and Weatherization

Assistance.

Expectations Going Forward

Since its inception, KHRC has become a “one-stop-shop” for housing programs in the State of
Kansas. Although KHRC is fiscally stable, we expect a substantial decrease in revenue provided
by one of our largest programs, which is a contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD). Under this contract, KHRC administers contract based section 8§
programs on behalf of HUD. We expect HUD’s newly announced bid process will decrease our
annual revenue by approximately $800,000. KHRC Operations will absorb this loss, but will no
longer be able to support the State Housing Trust Fund, forcing Trust Fund Programs such as the
Kansas Accessibility Modification Program and the Emergency Repair Programs to be

suspended.

I would be happy to answer any questions you might have about the Kansas Housing Resources

Corporation.



RESOURCES CORPDRATION

May 28, 2009 .
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MEMO FOR: KHRC Board of Directors (o\ »%‘\ o
FROM: Gary Allsup, Executive Director

Susan James, Controller
SUBJECT: FY 2010 Budget and Financial Plan

It is our pleasure to present to you a balanced Budget and Financial Plan for the 2010 fiscal year
for Board consideration. This document serves as a policy document, an operations guide, and a
communications device, as well as a standard budget.

Themes

Our proposed FY 2010 Financial Plan aligns budgetary priorities around a number of key
themes:

o Continued efforts to increase resources. For the next three fiscal years, KHRC will
menage over $135 million in federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA)
allocations that provide financial assistance for Tax Credit ‘developments, improve
residential energy efficiency, help prevent homelessness, and expand community action
activities across the state. As these funds are time-sensitive, we will assure their long-
term effect as we assess and identify longer term funding opportunities to meet Kansans
housing needs.

o Maximizing the use of KHRC Operations and State Housing Trust Fund (SHTF)
resources, including state and federal funds through the use of Notices of Funding
Availability (NOFA). This process notifies the public of the availability of resources and
formalizes the application process, especially with anticipated receipt of ARRA funding.

o Improving our capacity, The proposed financial plan includes funds to improve and
enhance network infrastructure and reporting capabilities, increased staffing to meet and
address federal ARRA program administration requirements, and additional office space
to accommodate increased staffing and conference room needs.

o Enhancing the profile of KHRC and improving communications with our stakeholders.
| Efforts continue to solidify KHRC as the “go-to” provider of housing resources in
| Kansas.

. 1
611 S. Kansas Ave., Ste. 300, Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803 / (785) 296-5865 fax (785) 296-8985 | www.kshousingcorp.org

Miach v 2.

GEFD 2070




QOverview of the 2010 Financial Plan

KHRC OPERATIONS

Revenue:;
Fees for services revenue is projected to be strong, consistent with 2009.

Grant administration revenue, which is a function of administrative costs incurred, is expected

to increase primarily due to the six new federal ARRA DOE weatherization program staff and
related travel and training costs.

Recognized match income is proposed to increase from $1.3 million to $2.6 million due to
HOME disaster declarations expiring in 2009 (disaster area grant payments are not subject to
match), With HOME match unearned revenue treatment, as long as KHRC has a match credit,
recognized match income and recognized match expense will be recorded in corresponding
amounts on KHRC’s financial statements with no impact to the “bottom line”. KHRC currently

has a match carryover balance of approximately $7.5 million; thus, it’s very likely KHRC will be
in a match credit position for several years.

Federal program revenues are projected to increase from $69.2 million to $150.5 million due to

projected receipt of federal ARRA funds for subgrantee grant recipients.
Expenses:
Salaries and wages increased for the six new federal ARRA DOE weatherization program staff.

Rents are proposed to increase for additional office space in the KPERS Building effective
October 1, 2009,

Travel costs are proposed to increase primarily due to new federal ARRA DOE weatherization
program staff travel.

Expensed furniture/equipment costs are proposed to increase for the new office space furniture.

Recognized match expense is proposed to increase from $1.3 million to $2.6 million due to
HOMRE disaster declarations expiring in 2009.

Federal program expenses are projected to increase from $69.2 million to $150.5 million due to
subsequent payment, or “pass through”, of federal ARRA funds to subgrantee grant recipients.

Transfers:

Transfers out are projected to include a $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC
Operations to the State Housing Trust Fund.

Result:

KHERC Operations fees for services activity will remain strong, and program administration
activity will grow with receipt of large federal ARRA funding. In addition, as a primary funder
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of the State Housing Trust Fund, KHRC Operations proposes a $1.25 million discretionary
transfer funded by its operations, After the transfer, KHRC Operations is projected to provide a
positive “bottom line” position of $52,000.

STATE HOUSING TRUST FUND

Revenue:

The chart below provides a historical snapshot of state revenues and MRB/MCC/SF housing
bond fees. Total operating revenue is estimated at $2.2 million for 2010 versus $4.1 million for
projected 2009, a reduction of $1.9 million.

SHTF Opetrating Revenues

$12,000,000

$10,000,000 B Contributions/donations
B SFCDisaster revenues

& Gov WARM/KEEP
HDGP/SB 417 revenues

MRB/MCC/SF fees

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000
$2,000,000

S-

2007 2008 2009* 2010*

# . 2009 Projected Estimate and proposed 2010 Financial Plan.

MRB/MCCY/SF housing bond fees are projected to be $50,000, which is consistent with the
projected 2009 level due to current economic conditions.

State program revenues are projected to fall due to reduced state funding for the Housing
Development Grant Program (HDGP) from $4.0 million in 2009 to $2.0 million in 2010,

Expenses:

Program expenses include $800,000 for the Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program
(KAMP) and Emergency Repair Program (ERP) grants at $400,000 each, Historically, KAMP
and ERP funding has been $800,000 per year for FY 2004 through FY 2007 and $1.0 million per
year for FY 2008 and FY 2009. We propose funding these programs for FY 2010 at a reduced
level from FY 2008 and FY 2009 due to limited resources in the current market environment.

The program year has now been converted from November 1% to July 1¥ to better correspond
with KHRC’s June 30th fiscal year end.

Provision for loan losses include projected issuance of disaster-related soft loans representing
the balance of the State Finance Council 2008 $5.0 million disaster allocation.
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o State program expenses are projected to increase after 2009 as state allocations for the Housing
Development Grant Program are expended.

Transfers:

e Transfers in are projected to include a $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC
Operations to the State Housing Trust Fund,

Result:

o The chart below provides a historical snapshot of SHTF operating revenues and expenses. Total
‘operating expenses are projected to remain constant with 2009, while operating revenues ate
expected to fall from $4.1 million to $2.2 million, a reduction of $1.9 million.

SHTF Operating Revenues and Expenses
$14,000,000
zizgg?gzz /\ =meea SHTF Operating
R / \ revenues
38,000,000 / P ====SHTF operating
$6,000,000 + expenses
$4,000,000 // \
$2,000,000 \
$- T r T )
2007 2008 2009% 2010

* . 2009 Projected Estimate and proposed 2010 Financial Plan.

o The receipt of funds in one year and the expenditure of funds in a subsequent year create a timing
difference. For example, the SHTF had an excess of revenues over expenses of $5.7 million for
2008, while FY 2010 proposes a $3.4 million deficiency of revenues under expenses (please see
SHTF Total Operations on page 10, and positive cash position on the Net Assets and Cash
Balances schedule on page 12). We will continue to monitor timing difference fluctuations from
year-to-year for an overall balanced financial plan approach.

We would be happy to address any questions you might have at the Board meeting, Thank you for your
time and attention to this information,




Kansas Housing Resources Corporation

2010 Financial Plan

June 4, 2009
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Overview of Financial Plan

An Overview of the 2010 Financial Plan

The Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) administers federal and fee-funded housing
programs (KHRC Operations), and also serves as administrator of the Kansas State Housing Trust Fund
(SHTF). The SHTF was established by House Bill No. 2517 and is now codified at KSA 74-8959. SHTF
resources must be used for the purpose of housing programs and services, which include repair and
rehabilitation of existing housing, accessibility modifications, and assistance to low-income or disabled
persons, Effective July 1, 2007 separate and distinct balances were established for the SHTF and KHRC
Operations, KHRC Operations are defined as fee for service activities, federal grant program
administration, and other activities that have the characteristics of an exchange transaction. SHTF
activities and resources include funding KHRC receives based solely on its designation as the provider of
housing services for the State of Kansas. Examples of SHTF activities include receipt of MRB/MCC

bond issuance fees, private activity bond multi-family bond issuance fees, state allocations, and other
miscellaneous revenue streams.

The separation of KHRC Operations and the SHTF is provided in the 2010 Financial Plan in the form of
separate schedules titled, for example, as follows: “KHRC Operations”, “State Housing Trust Fund”, and
“Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (Combined)”.

KHRC Operations and the SHTF’s activities combined meet the definition of an enterprise fund from an
accounting perspective, since it is the intent of KHRC to recover, primarily through user charges and
grant reimbursement, the cost of providing goods or services to the public. This document serves as
KHRC’s proposed financial plan for the year ending June 30, 2010 (2010 Financial Plan).

The proposed financial plan was developed taking into consideration anticipated continued fee fund and
federal program- activity at current levels, new federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA) funding, state funding, the.need for continued funding and growth of KHRC-administered
programs, and preserving and growing cash balances to meet future Kansans’ housing needs. In addition,
timing differences were also considered for SHTF program funds received, but not spent in the same year,
These timing differences can cause an excess of revenues over expenses in the first year, and a deficiency
of revenues over expenses in the next year. For example, the State Finance Council’s $5 million 2008
Disaster Allocation was received in FY 2008, but will not be fully expended until after FY 2008. Please
see the table on page 10 labeled “State Housing Trust Fund Total Operations” for examples of timing
differences comparing Projected 2009 to the 2010 Financial Plan, Please also see page 12 for Net Assets

and Cash Balances and note the SHTF’s positive cash position for the 2009 Projected Estimate and 2010
Financial Plan.

Revenues in the 2010 Financial Plan from all funding sources combined are expeoted to increase by $81.3
million, or 101.3 percent, from $80.3 million for 2009 projected revenues to $161.6 million due to
expected receipt of federal ARRA funding, while expenses are expected to grow by $84.9 million, or
103.0 percent, from $81.4 million for 2009 projected expenses to $165.3 million, due to payment of
federal ARRA program expenses. Expenses are projected to exceed revenues in 2010 due to timing
differences for SHTF program funds spent in 2010, but received in a prior year.



Overview of Revenues

Operating revenues from all funding sources combined estimated to finance the 2010 Financial Plan
totals $161.6 million for 2010 versus $80.3 million for projected 2009. Operating revenues include fees
for service, grant administration fees, and federal “pass-throug » program revenues. The 2010 estimate is
101.3 percent higher than the projected 2009 estimate due to expected receipt of federal ARRA program
funding. The tables on pages 16 and 17 break out the 2008 through 2010 operating revenues by program.
Further discussion of all revenne sources is in the Appendix section.

Operating revenues from KHRC Operations funding sources are estimated at $159.5 million for 2010
versus $76.1 million for projected 2009. The 2010 estimate is 109.5 percent higher than the projected
2009 estimate due to expected receipt of federal ARRA funding.

Operating revenues from SHTT funding sources are estimated at $2.2 million for 2010 versus $4.1
million for projected 2009. The 2010 estimate is 48.1 percent lower than the projected 2009 estimate due
to reduced Housing Development Grant Program funding from $4.0 million to $2.0 million in 2010.
MRB/MCC/SFE housing bond fees are estimated at $50,000 for 2010, which approximates the projected
7009 estimate of $47,000, as current economic conditions are projected to continue.

Non-operating revenues from all funding sources combined are estimated at $335,000. Non-operating
revenues include investment income. The 2010 total is a decrease of $266,000 or 44.2 percent from the
2009 projected revenue estimate. The decrease from projected 2009 to the 2010 Financial Plan is due to
reduced cash balances available for investment and reduced yield. The tables on pages 16 and 17 break
out the 2008 through 2010 non-operating revenues by program.

Non-operating revenues (investment income) from KHRC Operations funding sources are estimated
at $175,000 for 2010 versus $225,000 for projected 2009. The 2010 estimate is 22.2 percent lower than
the projected 2009 estimate primarily due to reduced yield.

Non-operating revenues (investment income) from SHTF funding sources are estimated at $160,000
for 2010 versus $376,000 for projected 2009, The 2010 estimate is 57.4 percent lower than the projected
2009 estimate primarily due to reduced cash balances available for investment and reduced yield.

Qverview of Expenses

Operating expenses from all funding sources combined are estimated at $165.3 million for 2010
versus $81.4 million for projected 2009. Operating expenses include employee salaries and benefits,
supplies, professional fees, and federal ARRA and state program expenses. The 2010 estimate is 103.0
percent higher than the projected 2009 estimate due to expected payment of federal ARRA program
expenses, The tables on pages 16 and 17 break out the 2008 through 2010 operating expenses by
program. Further discussion of all expenses is in the Appendix section. :

Operating expenses from KHRC Operations are estimated at $158.4 million for 2010 versus $74.8
million for projected 2009. The 2010 estimate is 111.8 percent higher than the projected 2009 estimate
due to expected payment of federal ARRA program expenses.

Operating expenses from SHTF activities are estimated at $6.9 million for 2010 versus §$6.7
million for projected 2009. The 2010 estimate is 2.8 percent higher than the projected 2009 estimate
primarily due to increased state program expenses.
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Hﬁstory

The Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) was established pursuant to Executive
Reorganization Order No. 30 dated February 10, 2003 (ERO 30), and 2003 Kansas Senate Bill No. 285
(SB 285), which transferred the Division of Housing of the Kansas Department of Commerce and
Housing to the Kansas Development Finance Authority (KDFA), effective July 1, 2003 to be organized in
accordance with the Kansas Development Finance Authority Act (KDFA Act), K.8.A. 74-8901 et seq., as
amended. KHRC was incorporated, effective July 1, 2003, by the KDFA to be a subsidiary corporation in
accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8904 (v). That statute further provides that the Board
members of KDFA shall constitute all the Board members of KHRC, and that KDFA is the sole member

of KHRC. KHRC is an independent instrumentality of the State of Kansas and a public body politic and
corporate.

To accomplish its objectives, KHRC has the rights, powers, privileges, and duties conferred by ERO 30,
SB 285, and its articles of incorporation and bylaws. These include making bylaws and adopting rules
and regulations to carry out the purposes of KHRC; acquiring, holding, and disposing of real and personal
property for its corporate purposes; appointing officers, agents and employees; entering into contracts and
agreements; collecting fees and charging for its services; accepting gifts, grants, loans, and other aid;

investing moneys; procuring insurance; and providing technical assistance and advice to the State of
Kansas or political subdivisions of the State.

While the KDFA Act clearly distinguishes KHRC as an independent instrumentality, rather than a State
agency, KHRC enjoys State resources when it is to KHRC’s advantage to do so. For example, KHRC
chooses to process employee compensation and benefits through the State’s payroll system and enjoys
advantages such as the use of State purchasing contract prices, the central mail system, the printing
division’s services, and telecommunications services. Use of these State services is efficient for KHRC,
saving both staff time and money.

From an accounting and reporting perspective, ERO 30 established that XDFA shall kesp separate
records and accounts for KDFA and KHRC. In addition, the ERO established that all expenses of KDFA
incurred in the performance of its duties shall be payable from funds generated by KDFA, and all
expenses of KHRC incurred in the performance of its duties shall be payable from funds generated by

KHRC.
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Mission and Strategsic Plan Goals

Mission

KHRC’s mission is to enhance Kansas® communities with housing opportunities. KFHRC pursues this
mission through the use of a variety of strategies and approaches, including increasing homeownership
opportunities, leveraging the construction of more affordable rental housing, promoting energy efficiency
improvements for owner-occupied and tental housing, providing affordable housing through rental
assistance to low-income families and senior citizens, and creating housing opportunities for underserved
persons and communities.

Strategic Plan Goals

KHRC completed its first strategic plan in 2006. Thereafter, KHRC annually reviews its operations and
current and future requirements in order to identify improvement opportunities. Improvement
opportunities identified in this process can be summarized in three general areas:

Documenting Kansas Housing Needs and Challenges

KHRC will identify the housing needs of Kansans, existing resources committed, and critical unmet
housing needs. Working with housing advocates and service providers, KHRC will coordinate statewide
needs and programs. Identifying potential resource priorities and potential funding sources will help
reduce the gap on critical unmet needs.

Improving Services to Kansans

Opportunities to improve services to Kansans will be identified. KHRC will expand the information
available on housing services and programs. KHRC will increase customer knowledge with expanded
communications. In addition, KHRC will expand solicitation of feedback from ocustomers and
stakeholders,

Using Technology to Improve Effectiveness
KHRC will identify and implement technologies needed to improve its program effectiveness. KHRC

will also identify internal and external information needs and the technologiés required to meet housing
needs.

With the above areas in mind, KHRC developed specific long-term goals during the strategic planning
process, which are to be completed within the next three to five years, as follows:

Assist 10,000 underserved Kansans with unmet critical housing needs
Educate customers and stakeholders on affordable housing

Provide accurate and current housing information

Increase minority participation in programs

Improve affordable housing services

Improve KHRC financial system efficiency, accuracy, and timeliness
Improve the effectiveness of KHRC business processes and staff resources
Research and implement new technology to improve KHRC effectiveness
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Progress on Strategic Plan Goals
To date KHRC has made substantial progress towards these improvement opportunities:

Now an annual event, the. Kansas Housing Conference continues to grow in size. In 2006, the
first year of the conference, over 200 participants attended the three-day event in Salina. In 2007,
over 300 attendees traveled to Hutchinson and nearly 350 attendees participated in the conference
in Pittsburg in 2008, This year, conference organizers estimate nearly 400 registrants will attend
the conference in Overland Park. The conference has served as an excellent tool to increase and
improve KHRC partnerships with numerous organizations across the state, as well as educate
housing providers, advocates, elected officials, builders and developers on the increasing
affordable housing needs in Kansas.

An enhanced mailing list was developed, which can be tailored for various uses and more
effective communications,

The Microsoft Dynamics GP accounting system has been implemented and a new banking
structure established to improve KHRC’s financial system efficiency, accuracy, timeliness,
ability to make effective decisions, and deliver services to its customers both internally and
externally.

KHRC staff continues to develop a comprehensive network of housing providers and advocates
throughout Kansas, who have held regular meetings to discuss housing strategies, advocate for
housing legislation, and determine ways to better utilize available resources while exploring new
sources of funding to meet Kansans’ housing needs.

KHRC staff and resources are continuing to help Greensburg and Southeast Kansas communities
rebuild from the 2007 tornado and flooding, and the corporation’s efforts are now being
recognized nationally. One of KHRC’s housing tax credit developments — Prairie Pointe
Townhomes, which serves seniors - received top honors from the U.S. Green Building Council
and is the first LEED® Platinum new construction affordable housing development in Kansas,
and the third tax credit complex in the nation.

Cross-training occurred with Rental Housing and Asset Management staff so monitoring could
be completed for multiple programs in the same compliance visit, resulting in more effective use
of KHRC staff time, reduced overall travel costs, and one combined visit for KHRC’s customer.
Electronic communication was etthanced and improved by the purchase and use of more laptop
computers, PDAs, and other technology.

KHRC’s new housing locator website, KSHousingSearch.org, is successfully adding new rental
properties daily, The site allows free listing of rental properties and enables people to search
statewide for rental vacancies. As of April 2009, the site had nearly 23,000 units in 82 counties
listed.

KHRC received an overwhelming response to the corporation’s new statewide initiative to help
income-eligible families replace inefficient appliances. The Residential Appliance Replacement
Program received over 2,300 voucher requests and committed $4.0 million in funding in only two
weeks. The Appliance Replacement Program funded by the State of Kansas® LIEAP grant allows
homeowners and renters to replace old, energy-hungry and unsafe appliances with new, energy-
efficient and environmentally-friendly models, Appliances eligible for replacement include
refrigerators, water heaters, heating and cooling systems and window air units,
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Operating revenues:
Fees for services
Grant administration income
Recognized match income
Housing bond fees (MRB/MCC/SF)
PAB Multifamily Allocation fees
Contributions and donatlons
Interest income on loans
Other income
Federal program revenues
Federal loan procesds
State program revenues
State loan proceeds

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Communication
Advertising and printing
Rent and parking fees
Equipment repairs and maintenance
Travel
Fees - professionsl and other services
Office and data processing supplies
Expensed furniture and equipment
Recognized match expense
Program expenses
Provision for loan losses
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Federal program expenses
Federal program income grant expenses
State program expenses
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues:
Investment Income

Total non-operating revenues

Transfers in
Transfers out *¥

Ixcess of revenues over expenses

KHRC Operations

TOTAL OPERATIONS
2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN
$ 3398258 § 3485311 § 3,693,644 § 3,490,525
1,431,041 1,862,776 1,833,125 2,701,716
991,392 2,393,258 1,253,006 2,596,331
48,347 58,485 52,825 53,276
113,502 130,000 97,924 70,000
62,925,675 60,581,584 69,197,547 150,539,352
349,500 . . .
§ 69,257,715 § 68511414 § 76,128,071 § 159,451,200
$ 1997773 $ 2329444 2,194,321  $ 2,538,744
536,919 606,438 545,249 719,176
41,365 39,075 40,475 43,650
19,829 13,025 24,431 29,500
219,172 222,933 218,033 257,510
21,198 32,560 24,162 25,650
150,150 124,575 164,815 398,967
468,329 472,871 618,757 756,326
82,420 60,477 66,833 61,750
36,969 129,639 80,240 155,000
991,392 2,393,258 1,253,006 2,596,331
30,000 . . .
250,151 31,360 28,663 -
. . 110,000 28,735
97,478 116,475 126,103 157,239
62,925,675 60,581,584 69,197,547 150,539,352
149,950 . 71,468 75,000
$ 68,018,770 §$ 67,153,714 § 74,764,101 § 158,382,929
§ 1238945 § 1357700 § 1,363,970 § 1,068,271
208,164 202,500 225,000 175,000
$ 208,164 $§ 202,500 § 225,000 & 175,000
$ 333,700  § . $ 64,652 § 58,999
(1,267,034) - (41,243) (1,250,000)
$ 513,775 $ 1,560,200 § 1,612,379 8 52,270

# . FY 2009 Financial Plan as emended March 5, 2009,

. The 2008 Actug} and FY 2010 Financial Plan Transfers out include a $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC Operations to the State

Housing Trust Fund,
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QOperating revenues:

Fees for services

Grant administyation income
Recognized match income

Housing bond fees (MRB/MCC/SF)
PAB Multifamily Allocation fees
Contributions and donations **

Interest income on loans
Other income

Federal program revenues

Federal Joan proceeds
State program revenues

State program loan proceeds
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salories and Wages
Employee Benefits
Communication
Advertising and printing
Rent and parking fees

Bquipment repairs and maintenance

Travel

Fees - professional and other services
Office and data processing supplies
Expensed fumniture and equipment
Recognized match expense

Program expenses

Proviston for loan losses **¥

Provision for bad debts
Depreciation

Federal-program expenses
Federal program income grant expenses

Stats program expenses

"Totnl opernting expenses

State Housing Trust Fund

_ Operating Income

Non-onemting reyenues:

Investment Income

Total non-operating revenues

Transfers in »
Transfers out A4

Txcess (deficieney) of revenues over
(under) expenses

TOTAL OPERATIONS
2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN
$ . $ . $ - $ .
1,210,648 800,000 47,057 50,000
52,400 20,000 . .
909,489 . . .
102,310 101,902 100,613 101,524
2,500 . . .
9,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 2,000,000
285,000 . - .
$ 11,562,347 4,921,902 3 147,670 8 2,151,524
$ 92,653 § 168,252  § 120,478 134,825
23,088 437722 29,640 38,194
1,381 1,200 2,674 1,250
4,283 1,875 2,070 1,125
6,312 11,376 12,780 11,535
857 1,440 1,132 500
24,879 5,375 9,160 5,500
68,623 108,300 153,936 53,000
3,191 2,514 3216 2,000
860 5,586 2,661 3,500
2,049,754 1,185,285 1,595,165 800,000
2,559,303 1,959,127 1,115,000 1,295,869
. 2,500 - .
2,340,095 6,800,000 3,630,104 4,520,027
g 7175279 10,206,552 _§ 6,678,015 § 6,867,325
$ 4387,068 §  (5374,650) 8§ (2,530,345)  $ (4,715,801)
$ 385,338 § 472,500 $ 375527 8 160,000
5 385,338 8 472,500 § 375,527 8 160,000
$ 1,267,034 8 - $ 41243 3 1,250,000
(333,700) - (1,064,652) (58,999)
$ 5705740  §  (4,902,150) 8 (3,178227) 8 (3,364,800)

% . FY 2009 Financial Plan as amended March 5, 2009,
#¥ _The 2008 Actual Contributions and donatlons revenue was for receipt of HUD restructured program loans.

4% . The 2009 Projected Estimate and 2010 Financial Plen Provision for loan losses are due to anficipated issuance of disaster-related soft loans

from the State Finance Council 2008 Disaster Allocation of $5 millio
A . The 2008 Actual and 2010 Financial Plan Transfers in include a

Trust Fund,

n.
1.25 million discretionary transfer from KEIRC Operations to the State Housing

™ The 2009 Projected Estimate Transfers out includes a $1,0 million transfer from the State Housing Trust Fund to the State of Kansas State
General Fund. This amount represents the balance of loan proceeds from the Governor's WARM Initiatives Program/KEEP revolving loan program,

10
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Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (Combined)

Operating reéyenues:

Fees for services
Grant administration income
Recognized match income
Housing bond fees (MRB/MCC/SF)
PAB Multifamily Allocation fees
Contributions and donations
Interest income on loans
Other income
Federal program revenues
Federal loan proceeds
State program revenues
State ploan proceeds

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Communication
Advertising and printing
Rent and parking fees
Equipment repairs and maintenance
Travel
Fees « professional and other services
Professional and office supplies
Expensed furniture and equipment
Recognized match expense
Program/grant expenses
Provislon for loan losses
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Federal program expenses
Federal program income grant expenses
State program expenses

Total operating expenscs

Operating income

Non-operating revenues:
Investment Income
Total non-operating revenues

Transfers in
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses

‘GRAND TOTAL OPERATIONS
2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN
$ 3398258 § 3485311 § 3,693,644 $ 3,490,525
1,431,041 1,862,776 1,833,125 2,701,716
991,392 2,393,258 1,253,006 2,596,331
1,210,648 800,000 47,057 50,000
52,400 * 20,000 . .
909,489 . . .
150,657 160,387 153,438 154,800
116,002 130,000 97,924 70,000
62,925,675 60,581,584 69,197,547 150,539,352
349,500 - - -
9,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 2,000,000
285,000 - - -
$ 80,820,062 § 73,433,316 § 80,275,741 § 161,602,724
§ 2090426 § 2,497,696 § 2,314,798 $ 2,673,569
560,007 650,160 574,890 757,370
42,746 40,275 43,149 44,900
24,112 14,900 26,500 30,625
225,484 234,309 230,812 269,045
22,055 34,000 25,294 26,150
175,029 129,950 173,976 404,467
536,952 581,171 772,693 809,326
85,611 62,991 70,049 63,750
37,829 135,225 82,900 158,500
991,392 2,393,258 1,253,006 2,596,331
2,079,754 1,185,285 1,595,165 800,000
2,809,454 1,990,487 1,143,663 1,295,869
. - 110,000 28,735
97,478 118,975 126,103 157,239
62,925,675 60,581,584 69,197,547 150,539,352
149,950 . 71,468 75,000
2,340,095 6,800,000 3,630,104 4,520,027
§ 75194049 § 77,450,266 § 81,442,117 § 165,250,254
. $ 5626013 § (4,016950) (1,166,375)  § (3,647,530)
$ 593502 § 675000 § 600,527 § 335,000
$ 593,502 $ 675,000 § 600,527 §$ 335,000
$ 1,600,734 § - . 105,895 § 1,308,999
(1,600,734) . (1,105,895) (1,308,999)
$ 6219515 § (3,341,950) 8 (1,565,849) 8 (3,312,530

¥ . FY 2009 Financinl Plan as amended March 5, 2009,
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NET ASSETS AND CASH BALANCES
2009 2009 2010
12008 * FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
ACTUAL PLAN ESTIMATE PLAN
Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (Combined)
NET ASSETS:
Net Assels, beginning as restated $ 12,433,380 % 21,365,244 $ 18,652,895 3 17,087,046
Excess of revenues over expenses (page 11) 6,219,515 (3,491,950) (1,565,849) (3,312,530)
Net Assets, ending as restated $ 18,652,895 $ 17,873,294 $ 17,087,046  $ 13,774,516
CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES:
Restricted $ 7,995,853 $ 4,250,000 6,100,000 $ 2,100,000
Unrestricted 8,314,450 6,250,000 6,400,000 6,400,000
Total Cash, end of year $ 16,310,303 $ 10,500,000 12,500,000 $ 8,500,000

# . KHRC Operations and State Housing Trust Fund balances were combined as of June 30, 2007, Separate and distinct balances were established July 1,

2007 going forward.

KHRC Operations
NET ASSETS:
Net Assets, beginning as restated $ 5,766,610 $ 7,962,225 6,280,385 $ 7,892,764
Excess of revenues over expenses (page 9) 513,775 1,410,200 1,612,379 52,270
Net Assels, ending as restated ’ $ 6,280,385 $ 9,372,425 7,892,764 $ 7,945,034
CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES:
Restricted $ 316,517 $ 200,000 100,000 3 100,000
Unrestricted 4,733,117 4,750,000 5,400,000 5,400,000
Total Cash, end of year $ 5,049,634 $ 4,950,000 5,500,000 3 5,500,000
State Housing Trust Fund
NET ASSETS:
Net Assets, beginning as vestated $ 6,666,770 3 13,403,019 12,372,510 $ 9,194,283
Excess of revenues over expenses (page 10) 5,705,740 (4,902,150) (3,178,227) (3,364,800)
Net Assets, ending as restated $ 12,372,510 $ 8,500,869 9,194,283 3 5,829,483
CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES:
Restricted $ 7,679,336 $ 4,050,000 6,000,000 3 2,000,000
Unrestricted 3,581,333 1,500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Cash, end of year $ 11,260,669 $ 5,550,000 7,000,000 $ 3,000,000

12
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KHRC Operations
FY 2010 Financial Plan Revenues and Expenses by Program
Asset CSBG, ESG, KHRC Efiminate ftra- KHRC
Tax Credit { Management HOME DOE - WAP LIEAP HIMIS & Corrects | Corpovate | Fund Transters Total
Operating revenues:
Fees for services 3 842,500 | $ 2.837,725 - $ - $ - 3 - $ 10,300 ] ¢ - $ 3,490,525
Grant administration incame - - 758,968 1,140,486 169,726 631,536 - - 2,701,716
Recagnized match income - - 1,800,000 - - 796,331 - - 2,596,331
Housing bond fees (MRBIMCCISF) - - - - - - - - -
PAB Multifamily Allocation fees - - - - - - - - -
Contributions and donations - - - - - - - - -
Interest income on program loans - - 53,276 - - - - - 53,276
COtherincome - - - - - 70,000 - - 70,000
Federal program revenues 45,664,448 45,720,000 8,000,000 27,578,584 6,790,028 15,786,281 - - 150,539,352
State program revenues - . - - - - - - - -
Total operating revenues 47,506,848 48,357,725 10,613,244 28,719,081, 6,959,754 17,284,148 10,300 - 159,451,200
Operating expenses:
Salaries and Wages 459,987 759,989 418,027 505,384 101,452 282,282 10,613 - 2,538,744
Employee Benefits 130,305 215,290 118,702 143,166 28,738 79,968 3,008 - 719,176
Communication 8,000 14,000 12,200 4,000 1,200 4,250 - - 43,650
Printing and advertising 7,500 2,500 2,500 5,000 10,000 2,000 - - 29,500
Rent and parking fees 64,978 84,549 41,389 27,683 11,535 27,376 - - 257,510
Repairs and maintenance 3,000 16,500 3,000 1,250 500 1,400 - - 25,650
Travel 50,000 39,000 24,250 249,917 1,800 34,000 - - 398,867
Fees - professional services 61,090 266,749 109,800 82,587 11,500 179,500 45,000 - 756,326
Professional and office supplies 20,000 16,000 12,000 7,500 1,000 5,250 - - 61,750
Expensed fumiture and equipment 18,000 38,500 17,000 64,000 2,000 15,500 - - 155,000
Recognized match expense - - 1,800,000 - - 796,331 - - 2,596,331
Program expenses - - - - - - - - -
Provision for loan losses - - 28,735 - - - - - 28,735
Provision forbad debts - - - - - - - - -
Depreciation 12,213 25,003 © 37,383 37,026 38,979 6,635 - - 157,239
Federal program expenses 46,664,448 45,720,000 8,000,000 27,578,594 6,790,028 15,786,281 - - 150,539,352
Federal program Income grant expenses - - 75,000 - - - - - 75,000
State program expenses - - - - - - - - -
Total operating expenses 47,499,521 47,198,080 10,701,086 28,706,107 6,998,733 17,220,783 58,618 - 158,382,929
Operating income 7421 1,159,645 (87,842) 12,974 (38,979) 63,365 (48,319} - 1,068,271
Nonoperating revenues:
Investrent income - - - - - - 175,000 - 475,000
Totzl nanoperating revenues - - - - - - 175,000 - 175,000 .
Transfers in - - - 17,700 - 123,949 - (82,650) 58,999
Transfers out * - - - - - - (1,332,650) 82,650 (1,250,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under) expenses 3 7427 |$ 1,158,645 % (87,8421 $ 30,674 18 (38,979) $ 187,314 | § (1.205,969)] $ - $ 52,270

& . Transfers outinclude a $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC Operations to the State Housing Trust Fund.




State Housing Trust Fund

EY 2010 Financial Plan Revenues and Expenses by Program

Operafing revenues:
Fees for services

Grant administration incame
Recognized match income
Housing bond fees (MRBMCCISF)
PAB Multifamily Allocation fees
Contributions and donafions
Interest income on program loans
Other income
Federal program revenues
State program revenues

Total operating ravenues

Qperating expenses:
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Communication
Printing and adverfising
Rent and parking fees

and mail

147

Travel
Fees - professional services
Professional and office supplies
Expensed furniture and equipment
Recognized match expense
Program expenses
Provision for loan losses
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Federal program expenses
Federal program income grant expenses
State program expenses

Total operating expenses

Qperating income

Nongperating revenues:
Investmeat income
TYotal nonicperating revenues

Transfers in *
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenses})

SFC Disaster Housing KAMP General SHTF
Assistance Development and ERP SHTF Total
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

- - - 50,000 50,000

14,300 - - 87,224 101,524

- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000

14,300 2,000,000 - 137,224 2,151,524

- 72,984 61,841 - 134,825

- 20,675 17,519 - 38,184

- 500 750 - 1,250

- 275 100 750 1,125

- 6,921 4,614 - 11,535

- - 500 - 500

- 2,500 2,500 500 5,500

- 2,500 7,500 43,000 53,000

- 1,000 1,000 - 2,000

- 1,500 2,000 - 3,500

- - 800,000 - 800,000

1,232,135 - - 7 63,734 1,295,869

- 4,520,027 - - 4,520,027

1,232,135 4,628,882 898,324 107,984 6,867,325
(1.217,835) (2,628,882) (898,324) 29,240 (4,715,801}
10,000 25,000 - 125,000 160,000

10,000 25,000 - 125,000 160,000

- - - 1,250,000 1,250,000

- - - (58.999) (58,999

$ (1,207,835) $ (2.603,882)| § (898,324)| $ 1,345,241 | (3,364,800)

A . Traasfers in include a $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC Operations to the State Housing Trust Fund.
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Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (Combined)

FY 2010 Financial Plan Revenues and Expenses by Program

QOperating revenues:

Fees for services
Grant administration Income
Recognized match income
Housing bond fees (MRB/MCGI/SF)
PAB multifamily allocation fees
Contributions and donations
Interest Income on program loans
Other income
Federal program revenues
State program revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salarles and Wages
Employee Benefits
Communication
Printing and advertising
Rent and parking fees
Repalrs and maintenance
Travel
Fees - professional services
Professional and office supplies
Expensed furniture and equipment
Recognized match expense
Program expenses
Provision for loan losses
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Federal program expenses
Federal program Income grant expenses
State program expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income

Total nonoperating revenues

Transfers In
Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenses)

State
KHRC Housing Grand
Operations Trust Fund Total
$ 3,490,625 $ - 3,490,625
2,701,716 - 2,701,716
2,596,331 - 2,596,331
- 50,000 50,000
53,276 101,624 154,800
70,000 - 70,000
160,539,362 - 150,539,352
- 2,000,000 2,000,000
159,451,200 2,161,524 161,602,724
2,638,744 134,825 2,673,569
719,176 38,194 757,370
43,650 1,250 44,900
29,500 1,125 30,625
257,510 11,536 269,045
25,650 500 26,160
308,967 5,500 404,467
766,326 53,000 809,326
61,750 2,000 63,750
165,000 3,600 168,600
2,696,331 - 2,596,331
- 800,000 800,000
28,735 1,205,869 1,324,604
157,239 - 157,239
160,539,352 - 150,539,362
75,000 - 75,000
- 4,520,027 4,620,027
158,382,929 6,867,325 165,250,254
1,068,271 (4,715,801) (8,647,630)
176,000 160,000 335,000
175,000 160,000 335,000
58,969 1,250,000 1,308,999
(1,250,000) (58,999) (1,308,999)
$ 52,270 $ (3,364,800) $ (3,312,630)
15



KHRC Operations

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAN, AND NONOPERATING
REVENUES BY PROGRA

2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
Program/IKHRC Corporate ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAM
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental Houstng Program (Tax Credit) 5 943,799 5 966,250 § 6,143,416 % 417,506,948
Section 8 Conlract Admin/HAP (Asset Mgmt.) 44,679,600 43,858,761 47,036,451 48,357,725
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 11,347,440 10,438,079 9,790,624 10,613,244
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) 2,120,675 3,030,909 2,466,370 28,719,081
Low-Incoms Bnergy Assistance Program (LIEAP) 3,097,220 2,544,982 3,158,732 6,939,754
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG),
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Homeless .
Management Information Systems Grant (HMIS),
and Dept, of Corrections Reentry Program 6,467,069 7,662,133 7,522,177 17,284,148
KHRC Cormporate 1,912 10,300 10,300 10,300
Total Operating Revenues 3 69,257,715 § 68,511,414 $ 76,128,071 $ 159,451,200
OPERATING EXPENSES
Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit) $ 665,186 § 743,450 § 5,831,799 § 47,499,521
Section § Contract Admin/HAP (Asset Mgmt.) 43,630,369 42,884,162 45,962,845 47,198,080
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 11,388,727 10,438,079 9,876,694 10,701,086
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) 2,783,997 .2,880,909 2,475,535 28,706,107
Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) 3,032,734 2,544,982 3,184,971 6,998,733
Community Services Blook Grant (CSBG),
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Homeless
Management Information Systems Grant (FMIS),
and Dept, of Corrections Reentry Program 6,515,915 7,662,133 7,432,155 17,220,783
ICHRC Corporate 1,842 - 102 58,619
Total Operating Expenses 8 68,018,770 3 67,153,714 8 74,764,101 § 158,382,929
Operating Income 3 1,238,945 § 1,357,700 § 1,363,970 _§ 1,068,271
NON-OPERATING REVENUES BY PROGRAM
Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit) 3 - 8 - % - % -
Section 8 Contract Admin/HAP (Asset Mgmt.) - - - -
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) - - - -
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) - - - -
Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) - - - -
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Homeless - - - -
KHRC Cormporate 208,164 202,500 225,000 175,000
Total Non-Operating Revenues $ 208,164 § 202,500 § 225,000 3 175,000

* . FY 2009 Financial Plan as amended March 5, 2009,
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State Housing Trust Fund i

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAN, AND NONOPERATING ‘
REVENUES BY PROGRAM

2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED PROJECTED
Program/General SHTF . ACTUAL PLAN ¥ ESTIMATL ESTIMATE
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES BY PROGRAM
OPERATING REVENUES
SHTF Disaster Asslstance $ - 8§ - $ - % -
SFC Disaster Asslstance 5,000,794 14,264 14,300
Governor's WARM Initiatives Program/KEEP 2,500 . - .
Housing Development Grant Program 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 2,000,000
Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program
{(IKAMP) and Emergency Repair Program (ERP) - - _ . -
General SHTF 2,559,053 921,902 133,406 137,224
Total Operating Revenues 8 11,562,347 8 4,921,902 $ 4,147,670 § 2,151,524
OPERATING EXPENSES
SHTF Disaster Assistance $ 890,897 $ - 8 594,685 $ -
SFC Disaster Assistance 3,426,890 2,713,924 988,109 1,232,135
Governor's WARM Initiatives Program/KEEP 13,212 25,538 23,401 -
Housing Development Grant Program 3,822 6,107,615 3,513,065 4,628,882
Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program
(KAMP) and Emergenoy Repair Program (ERP) 1,038,924 1,109,504 1,048,021 898,324
Genersl SHTF ) 1,801,534 339,971 510,734 107,984
Total Operating Expenses s 7,175279 8 10,296,552 § 6,678,015 % 6,867,325
Operating Income 3 4,387,068 $ (5,374,650) § (2,530,345) $ (4,715,801)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES BY PROGRAM
SHTF Disaster Assistance 3 - § - $ - % -
SFC Disaster Assistance 105,997 - 25,000 10,000
Govermnor's WARM Initiatives Program/KEEP 81,408 - 41,000 -
Housing Development Grant Program 15,475 - 190,000 25,000
Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program
(KAMP) and Emergency Repair Program (ERP) - - - -
General SHTF 182,458 472,500 119,527 125,000
Total Non-Operating Revenues $ 385338 $ 472,500 & 375,527 8 160,000

* . FY 2009 Financial Plan as amended March 3, 2009,
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KHRC Operations
TRANSFERS BY PROGRAN AND EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL
Program/ICHRC Corporate ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN

TRANSFERS BY PROGRANM
TRANSFERS IN

Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit) § - $ - %
Section 8 Contract Admin/HAP (Asset Mgmt.) . -
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 333,700 - 57,654
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) 54,163 - 17,700 17,700
Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) - -

Community Services Block Grant (CSB@),

Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Homeless

Managewment Information Systems Grant (HMIS),

and Dept, of Corrections Reentry Program 42,632 - 71,948 123,949
KHRC Corporate - - -
Less: KHRC Operations intrafund transfors ** (96,795) - (82,650) (82,650)

Total Transfers In $ 333,700 B - 3 64,652 $ 58,999

TRANSFERS OUT

Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit) $ - $ - $ 17,600 §
Section 8 Contract Admin/HAP (Asset Mgmt.) - L
HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME) - - .
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOB-WAP) - . .
Low-Income Encrgy Assistance Program (LIEAP) - - -

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG),

Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG), Homeless

Meanagement Information Systems Grant (HMIS),

and Dept, of Correctlons Reentry Program - N - .
KHRC Corporate *+* 1,363,829 - 106,293 1,332,650
Less: KHRC Operations intrafund transfers o (96,795) - (82,650) (82,650)

Total Transfers Out 8 1,267,034 $ - 8 41,243 3§ 1,250,000

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENSES $ 513,775 % 1,560,200 § 1,612,379 § 52,270

* . FY 2009 Financial Plan as amended March 5, 2009,

#+ . KHRC Operations Intrafund transfers represent transfers needed to fund federal program edministration shortfalls (i.e., ingufficient federal
program administration finding).

#¥% _ The 2008 Actual and 2010 Financlal Plan Transfers out include a §1.23 mitlion discretionary transfer from KHRC Operations to the Stale
Housing Trust Fund,
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State Housing Trust Fund

TRANSFERS BY PROGRAM AND EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENSES

Program/Genera) SHTT

2008
ACTUAL

2009
FINANCIAL
PLAN *

2009
PROJECTED
ESTIMATE

2010
FINANCIAL
PLAN

TRANSFERS BY PROGRAM
TRANSFERS IN

SHTF Disaster Assistance **
SEC Disaster Assistance
Govemor's WARM Initiatives Program/KEEP

Housing Developrent Grant Program

Kansas Accessibllity Modifications Program
(KAMP) and Emergenoy Repair Program (ERD)
General SHTF **

Total Transfers In

TRANSFERS OUT

SHTF Disaster Assistance
SFC Disaster Assistance

Govemnor's WARM Initiatives Progran/KEEP ##¥

Housing Development Grant Program

Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program
(KAMP) and Emergency Repair Program (ERP)
General SHTF

Total Transfers Out

1,250,000 §

13,212
3,822

23,635

17,600

1,250,000

1,267,034 3

41,243

1,250,000

-

333,700

1,000,000

64,652

333,700 &

1,064,652

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENSES

5,705,740 §

(4,902,150) &

(3,178,227)

§

(3,364,800)

* . FY 2009 Financial Plan ss amended March 5, 2009,

+* _The 2008 Actusl and 2010 Financia! Plan Transfers in include o $1.25 million discretionary transfer from KHRC Operations to the State Housing
Trust Fund (2008 Actual for SHTF Disaster Assistance and 2010 Financial Plan for General SHTF purposes),

%% _The $1.0 million 2009 Projected Estimate Transfers out represents the batance of loan proceeds from the Govemnor's WARM Initiatives
Program/KEEP revolving loan program. Funds were transferred to the State of Kansas State General Fund,
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Kansas Housing Resources Corporation

GRAND TOTALS |
2009 2009 2010
2008 FINANCIAL PROJECTED FINANCIAL

Program/Genernl SHTF ACTUAL PLAN * ESTIMATE PLAN
GRAND TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Total Operating Revenues 3 80,820,062 § 73,433,316 3 80,275,741 8 161,602,724

Total Operating Expenses 3 75,194,049 % 77,450,266 & 81,442,117 § 165,250,254

Operating Income 8 5,626,013 § (4,016,950) 3 (1,166,375) § (3,647,530)
GRAND TOTAL
NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Total Non-Operating Revenues 3 593,502 8 675,000 8 600,527 § 335,000
GRAND TOTAL
TRANSFERS

Total Transfers In 3 1,600,734 $ - 8 105,895 38 1,308,999

Total Transfers Out 1,600,734 - 1,105,895 1,308,999
GRAND TOTAL
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES
KHRC Operations 8 513,775 8 1,560,200 § 1,612,379 3 52,270
State Housing Trust Fund $ 5,705,740 3 (4,902,150) 8 (3,178,227) § (3,364,800)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues .over (under)

expenses $ 6,219,515 § (3,341,950) 8 (1,565,849) $ (3,312,530)

% . FY 2009 Financial Plan as amended March 5, 2009,
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Kansas Housing Resources Corporation
Capital OQutlay

Description - Cost
KHRC Operations
Tnformation technology:
Dell Servers (2) to replace domain controllers * $ 30,000
MS Exchange Dell Server upgrade * 20,000
Network Router * 5,000
Fax Server # 15,000
MS Exchange Server 2007 * 15,000
Weatherization Program Software Upgrades ** 50,000
Total information technology $ 135,000
Total Financial Plan 2010 Capital Outlay $ 135,000

# . Bquipment included in FY 2009 Financial Plan not purchased in FY 2009.

*% _ Bstimated additional software programming as needed due to ARRA recovery funding,

The above items will be capitalized in accordance with KHRC's fixed asset capitalization

policy. Computer and other IT equipment not included above totaling $49,000 will be

expensed as expensed equipment.
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KHRC Operations

SOURCES: *

Cormmunity Services Block Grant (CSBG) ARRA Federal Allocation
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) ARRA Federal Allocation **
Emergency Shelter Grant ESG) ARRA Federal Affocation **

Tax Credit Assistance Program (TCAP) ARRA Federal Allocation

Credit Exchange Program (CEP) "Section 1602" ARRA Federal Allocation
HOME Federal Atlocation **

HOME Program Income

HOME Recaptured Funds

Cormunity Services Block Grant (CSBG) Federal Allocation **
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP) Federal Allocation **
Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) Federal Allocation hid
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) Federal Allocation **

Hameless Management Infonmation System (HIMIS) Federal Allacation **
Section § Project-Bascd Reatal Assistance

Administration of Section 8 Project-Based Rental Assistance Contracts

Administration of Low I Housing Tax Credit Program
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program (per capita)
TOTAL SOURCES

USES (FUND COMMITMENTS): *

Community Sexvices Block Grant (CSBG) ARRA Federal Allacation
Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAF} ARRA Federal Alfocation **
Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) ARRA Federal Allocation **

Tax Credit Assistance Program (TCAF) ARRA Federal Allocation

Credit Exchange Program (CEP) “Section 1602" ARRA Federat Allocation
HOME CHDO, FTHB, ADDI, Homeowner Rehabilitation, znd TBRA **
Community Secvices Black Grant (CSBG) **

Weatherizatian Assistance Program (DOE-WAF) **

Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAP) **

Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) **

Homeless Mansgement Information System (HMIS) **

Section 8 Project-Based Reatal Assistance

Operating costs far Administratian of the Section 8 Project-Based Reatal Assistance

Contracts

Qperating costs for Administration of Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program

Program costs from Section 8 Project-Based Rental Assistance Adwmin
Program costs from Low Income Housing Tax Credit Admin.
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Program (per capita)
TOTAL USES (FUND COMMITMENTIS)
TOTAL FUNDS DISBURSED *

TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS ADMINISTERED

HOME and ESG match are not shown above as 2 source and use for simplicity sinee no net cash ©
« _Tota! Funds Dishursed may exceed Total Uses (Fund Commitments) due to timing differences

«=_ Includes program administration.

2010 Financial Plan: Federal Funds Summary.
2008 ACTUAL 2009 FIN. PLAN 2009 PROJECTED 2010 FIN. PLAN
- 3 - $ - 5 8,161,366
- - - 56441771
- - - 8,360,995
- - - 17,121,110
- - - 45,098,154
8,051,945 1,733,134 7,733,134 8,551,968
168,614 100,600 262,570 250,000
428,634 - 425,000 374,068 400,000
5,120,512 5,307,536 5307,536 5,679,633
2,264,099 2,518,837 2,518,837 5,001,886
2,501,554 2,497,790 2,497,790 6,790,028
888,683 893,258 893,258 896,331
133,000 - 133,000 133,000
42222427 41,350,000 44,496,108 - 45,720,000
2,457,173 2,508,761 2,540,344 2,637,725
943,799 966,250 1,143,416 842,500
57,104,050 57,330,320 57,000,000 57,000,000
122284450 5 121,630,886 S 124,000,061 S 269,086,467
- 3 - $ - 3 8,161,366
- - - 56,441,771
- - - 8,360,995
- - - 17,121,110
- - - 45,098,154
8,649,193 8.258,134 8,369,772 9.201,968
5,120,512 5,307,536 5,307,536 5,679,633
2,264,099 2,518,837 2,518,837 5,001,886
2,501,554 2,497,790 2,497,750 6,790,028
£88,683 893,258 893,258 896,331
133,000 - 133,000 133,000
42222 427 41,350,000 44,496,108 45,720,000
1,407,942 1,534,162 1,466,737 1,478,080
665,186 743,450 831,799 835,073
1,049,231 474,599 1,073,607 1,159,645
278,613 222 800 311,617 7427
57,104,050 57,330,320 57,000,000 57,000,000
172284450 S 121,630,886 8 124900,061 5 269,086,467
120,029,725 3 117,911,904 3. 126,197,547 3 207,539,352
122284490 § 121,630.886  _§ 124900061 $ 269,086,467

utlay accurred or is expected aceur in FY 2007 thorugh FY 2009.
between when fids were comumitted and whea funds are disbursed.
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State Housing Trust Fund
2010 Financial Plan: SHTF and State Funds Summary

The 2010 SBTF Funds and State Funds Summary provides a summary of State and SHTF program funds administered by KBRC:

2008 *2009 2009 2010
ACTUAL FINANCIAL PLAN PROJECTED FINANCIAL PLAN
PROGRAMS
SOURCES:
State Housing Trust Fund 3 2,250,000 § 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000 s 1,000,000
State of Kansas State Finance Coungcil Disaster Assistance: 2008 Allocation 5,000,000 - - -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2008 Allocation 4,000,000 - - -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2009 Allocation - 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2010 Allocation - - - 2,000,000
TOTAL SOURCES $ 11,250,000 & 5,000,000 S 5,000,000 3 3,000,000
USES (FUND COMMITMENTS):
Kansas Accessibility Madifications Program (KAMP): 2008 Allocation g 500,000 $ - 3 - 3 -
Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program (KAMP): 2009 Allocation - 500,000 500,000 -
Kansas Accessibility Modifications Program (KAMP): 2010 Allocation - - - 500,000
Emergency Repair Program (ERP): 2008 Allocation 500,000 - - -
Emergency Repair Program (ERP): 2009 Allocation - 500,000 500,000 -
Emergency Repair Program (ERP): 2010 Allocation - - - 500,000
State of Kansas State Finance Council Disaster Assistance: 2008 Allocation 5,000,000 - - -
State Housing Trust Fund Disaster Assistance: 2008 Allocation 1,250,000 - - -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2008 Allocation 4,000,000 - ; - -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2009 Allocation - 4,000,000 4,000,000 -
State of Kansas State Housing Development Grant: 2010 Allocation - - - 2,000,000
TOTAL USES (FUND COMMITMENTS) 3 11,250,006 $ 5,000,000 _§ 5,000,000 § 3,000,000
TOTAL FUNDS DISBURSED ** $ 57207339 S 9709200 3 5,985,269 8 6,552,162

+ _The 2009 Financial Plan amounts have been amended to more accurately be able to view cascade of timing differences across muitiple fiscal years comparing year funds committed to

year funds disbursed.
++ _Total Funds Disbursed may exceed Total Uses (Fund Commitments) due to timing differences between when funds were committed and when funds are disbursed.




APPENDIX

Financial Policies, Guidelines and Practices

KHRC relies on formal policies, State law and established financial principles to guide its financial
planning and management. It also has policies established in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and other best practices. These policies set forth the basic framework for
the overall fiscal management of KHRC. The financial policies provide guidelines for evaluating both
current activities and proposals and opportunities for future programs. Most policies and procedures
represent long-standing principles and practices that guide KHRC to help maintain its financial stability.
As KHRC grows and matures, it continues to review, update and establish its financial policies and
procedures on an ongoing basis.

Administration

The Administration Department is responsible for the execution of all policies established by KHRC; the

_overall management and supervision of all programs; the administration of the overall financial plan; and

providing information and advice to the Board of Directors and general public. The Department includes
the Executive Director, Deputy Director, finance and accounting, legal, human resources,
communications, and information technology.

The Administration Department’s costs have been allocated to each program’s financial plan using the
following cost allocation methods: direct application (e.g., travel costs associated with a particular
program), relative program activity (e.g., computation based on each program’s relative reverue and
expense activity), finance and accounting (e.g., number of accounting transactions processed), human
resources (e.g., number of personnel), and information technology (e.g., number of telephone and
computer connections). During the financial plan preparation process, administrative expense items are
evaluated to determine the most appropriate cost allocation method, most notably for salaries and related
payroll expenses. As expense items are paid or accrued during the year, they are reviewed from a facts
and circumstances perspective, so the most appropriate cost allocation method is used.

Neither Kansas law nor State policies and procedures specifically prescribe the policies or procedures by
which KHRC prepares its annual financial plan. However, as KHRC’s annual fiscal year begins July 1%,
and as KERC desires to follow sound business practices, KHRC’s Board of Directors adopts KHRC’s
financial plan before the commencement of each fiscal year, Financial plan amendments are prepared and
submitted to the Board for adoption for material changes on an as needed basis during the fiscal year.
The financial plan will itemize anticipated revenues and proposed expenses, detailed by program. Asa
policy, total financial plan program activity must be balanced so that anticipated total expenses do not
exceed anticipated total revenues. Changes from expense category to expense category may be made
administratively with the approval of the Executive Director, Revenues and expenses are tracked
regularly to ensure adherence to the financial plan and to provide information for effective decision
making. Monthly financial statements and reports are prepared and presented to the Board to review
adherence to the financial plan and provide an awareness of KHRC’s financial position.
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K.S.A, 74-8913 requires that on or before the last day of November each year KHRC provides an annual
report of its activities for the preceding fiscal year to the governor and to the legislature. As required by
Statute, the report contains an audit of the preceding fiscal year, prepared by a firm of nationally
recognized certified public accountants. KHRC is financially accountable to the State, and the State
exercises oversight responsibility on financial interdependency and accountability for fiscal matters and
scope of public service. The audit of KHRC’s financial statements is included in the- State’s financial
reporting entity, and KHRC’s transactions are reported in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial

Report as a component unit. KHRC’s expenditures of federal awards are included in the State’s OMB
Circular A-133 audit.

' Investment Polic&

KHRC recognizes that effective cash management is an integral component of good financial
management, KHRC has adopted a formal investment policy. The primary objectives of investment
activities, in priority order, are safety, liquidity, and yield, KHRC’s investment portfolio is designed and
managed in accordance with this policy to ensure public trust and to be consistent with Federal and State

of Kansas law. Investments are made at the highest rates obtainable at the time of the investment in
accordance with the following criteria:

o Safety — Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Each
investment will be made in a manner which ensures the preservation of capital in the portfolio.

o Liquidity — KHRC maintdins sufficient liquidity so as to meet all operating needs and expenses.
This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash
needs to meet anticipated demands.

» Return on Investment — The investment portfolio is designed to attain a market rate of return
throughout financial plan and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio, Return on investment is of
secondary importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives.

o Diversification — Market risk is minimized by diversification of investment types. KHRC
diversifies its investments (where prudent judgment dictates) so that reliance on any one issuer
(financial institution) or investment type will not place an undue burden on KHRC.

o Pooling of Funds — Except for cash in Federal grant program and other restricted funds, KHRC
will consolidate reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings and to increase
officiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration. Investment
income is allocated to the various funds based on their respective participation and in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

o Collateralization — Where allowed by State law, full collateralization is required on all demand
deposit accounts, including checking accounts and non-negotiable certificates of deposit.

The investment policy also outlines safeguards, investment procedures, legal authority, and other
procedures related to the prudent investment of funds.
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Program Information

FEDERAL PROGRAMS (KHRC OPERATIONS):

Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit)

The Housing Tax Credit program (Tax Credit) is designed to secure private equity capital for the
development of affordable rental housing through tax incentives rather than direct subsidies. Bnacted in
the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the Tax Credit is a ten-year federal tax credit against a taxpayer’s ordinary
income tax liability available to individuals (directly or through partnerships) and corporations, who
acquire or develop and own the affordable rental housing properties. The Tax Credit historically provides
as much as 55-60 percent of the total development cost, which reduces the amount of debt financing in
affordable rental housing developments, This allows lower rents and greater flexibility. KHRC receives
application, service, and compliance monitoring fees from developers and owners who participate in the
Tax Credit program. :

Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), KHRC will be allowed to “swap” or
exchange all returned tax credits from previous years as well as up to 40 percent of its 2009 per capita
authority for cash, to enable developments which have been unable to obtain equity, in the current market,
to complete their affordable housing projects under the Credit Exchange Program (CEP) also known as
the “Section 1602 Funding Program”, The CEP will be funded by the U.S. Treasury and is estimated to
be over $45.1 million. KHRC will utilize the CEP swap option, along with the Tax Credit Assistance
Program (TCAP) funds from HUD allocated through the ARRA, to enable developments to be
completed. (See section on HOME Investment Partuerships Program.)

Section 8 Contract Administration and Housing Assistance Payments
Program/HAP (Asset Management)

KHRC is the Section 8 Contract Administrator for project-based Section 8 properties in Kansas, KHRC
receives fees to administer the program and incentive-based administrative fees based on the number of
units under contract and KHRC’s performance level compared to HUD’s acceptable quality levels of
administration. The Section 8 Housing Assistance Payments Program provides housing assistance
payments to participating owners on behalf of eligible tenants to provide decent, safe, and sanitary

housing for very low-income families at rents they can afford. KHRC receives fees from HUD to
administer the program.

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME)

Congress created the HOME program as part of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, and it is
funded by HUD. The intent of the HOME Program is to provide decent, affordable housing to lower-
income households, expand the capacity of non-profit housing providers, strengthen the ability of state
and local governments to provide housing, and leverage private-sector participation, KHRC administers
the federal and State (KHRC) match required funds to carry out program activities related to down
payment assistance, homeowner and rental rehabilitation, multi-family rental housing finance, and tenant
based rental assistance. KHRC receives reimbursement of eligible costs associated with administration of
the program, and funds the required State match obligation associated with the program.
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For FY 2010-2012, HOME will receive $17.1 million in ARRA funding, titled the Tax Credit Assistance
Program (TCAP). These funds will be used as gap funding for Tax Credit projects which, but for this
funding, could otherwise not likely be developed in the current market.

Weatherization Assistance Program (DOE-WAP)

DOE-WAP is a long-term grant program funded by the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). The purpose
of the program is to make low-income households in income-eligible, single or multi-family dwellings,
including manufactured homes, more energy efficient, thereby reducing the utility bills of these families.
Funds may be used for leakage reduction, incidental repairs, health and safety measures, furnace and

cooling system repair/replacement, insulation, and replacement of inefficient refrigerators. KHRC
receives reimbursement of eligible costs associated with administration of the program.

Tn addition to doubling DOE funds for FY 2010, the DOE-WAP program also received $56 million in
ARRA funds for a three-year period. In view of the substantially increased funds as well as the existing
subgrantee agencies’ ability to ramp up operations to the extent necessary, for the short term, KHRC set
aside $16 million and established a multi-family program to be managed with KHRC staff, to focus on
weatherizing Tax Credit properties, USDA Rural Development properties, and project-based Section 8
properties that had no direct HUD funds for energy-efficiency improvements. The balance of the $56
million, or $40 million, is expected to be used for single-family dwellings.

Low-Income Energy Assistance Program (LIEAT)

KHRC receives and administers up to 15 percent of a portion of the State of Kansas’ LIEAP grant funded
by Health and Human Services (HHS) for the same purposes as the DOE-WAP Program. KHRC receives
reimbursement of eligible costs associated with administration of the program.

Due to a substantially increased 2010 allocation, in combination with the substantial increase in the DOE-
WAP program, KHRC set aside $4.0 million from the LIEAP allocation to fund the Residential
Appliance Replacement (RAR) program. The funds were used to replace old, inefficient refrigerators,
water heaters, furnaces, and cooling systems for eligible households. Although the funds were fully
obligated in FY 2009, the program will continue into FY 2010 until all funds are expended.

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG), Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG),
and Homeless Management and Information System (HIMIS) Programs

CSBG is funded by Health and Human Services (FIHS) and enables local agencies to provide a range of
services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes and effects of poverty
in the community. Services include the following areas: employment, education, making better use of
available income, housing, emergency services, nuirition, and providing linkages to other community
resources. KHRC receives reimbursement of eligible costs associated with administration of the program.

CSBG will receive $8.3 million in ARRA funding for FY 2010-2012. Those funds will be used to

increase community action activities across the state, with a goal of expanding the number of counties
served,
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ESG is funded by HUD and provides assistance to units of Jocal government or nonprofit organizations to
improve the quality of existing emergency homeless shelters, help meet the costs of operating emergency
shelters, and provide certain essential social services to homeless individuals. KEHRC receives partial
reimbursement of eligible costs associated with administration of the program.

For FY 2010-2012, ESG will receive $8.3 million in ARRA Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-
Housing Program (HPRP) funding. These funds will be used to assist families prevent homelessness and
to rapidly re-house those families who, with HPRP assistance, will be able to maintain their housing after
the funding is expended.

HEMIS is funded by HUD and provides a database management system to gather unduplicated client level
data on the extent of homelessness in Kansas to improve the effectiveness of homeless shelters and
service delivery systems. KHRC receives partial reimbursement of eligible costs associated with
administration of the program.

STATE HOUSING TRUST FUND PROGRAMS:

Kansas Accessibility Modification Program (KAMP) and Emergency Repair
Program (ERP) :

KAMP provides assistance to individuals with accessibility limitations by modifying their owned or
rented housing so they can live more independently, and increases housing stock that is accessible to
persons with disabilities.

ERP provides assistance to homeowners with emergency repair of existing owner-occupied properties
when no other source of funding is available in the area, and there is need for an emergency home repair,
such as an inoperable or faulty furnace, leaking roof, unsafe electrical wiring and plumbing, or hazardous
structural conditions.

Governor’s State of Kansas WARM Initiatives Programs

The Governor’s State of Kansas WARM Initiatives Programs provided $4 million in 2007: $2.0 million
for weatherization grants; and $2.0 million for an energy-efficiency revolving loan fund (Kansas Energy
Efficiency Program or KEEP). The weatherization granis were used for the same purposes as the DOE-
WAP program and were fully expended in 2007. The revolving loan fund provides interest free loans to
qualified homeowners to make improvements to their homes to increase energy efficiency (KEEP).

Because the Kansas Corporation Commission established an ARRA-funded program that duplicates

KEEP, the $1.0 million balance of KEEP revolving loan funds were transferred to the State of Kansas
State General Fund and the KHRC-administered KEEP program effectively ceased at the end of 2009.

State Housing Trust Fund Disaster Assistance

In FY 2008, KHRC transferred $1,25 million from KHRC Operations to the State Housing Trust Fund to

1

provide additional disaster relief funding to assist families with rebuilding or repairing their homes.
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State Finance Council Disaster Assistance

The State Finance Council provided $5.0 million in disaster relief funds in 2008 to assist families with

rebuilding or repairing their homes and to also assist developers of rental property with new construction
or reconstruction of impacted areas.

Housing Development Grant Program

Senate Bill 417 provided $4.0 million per year for 2008 through 2014 for housing development grants.
However, for 2010, funding was amended to be $2.0 million per year for two years, The program assists
local communities with long-term development of both rental and individually-owned affordable housing,
The program initially targeted communities that suffered recent disasters, but eligibility will expand in
2010 to include all cities.
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Operating Revenue Desériptions

Fees for Services — KHRC Operations receives fees for services to administer the State’s Housing Tax
Credit Program (Tax Credit), and Section 8 Contract Administration and Housing Assistance Payments
Program (Asset Management), KHRC receives application, service, and compliance monitoring fees
from developers and owners who participate in the Tax Credit program, and fees and incentive-based
administrative fees from HUD for administration of the Section 8 program.

Grant administration income — KHRC Operations receives reimbursement of eligible costs associated
with administering various federal programs. As costs are reimbursed or costs are incurred, they are
recognized as grant administration income for services provided to administer the programs.

Recognized match income — KHRC Operations incurs match requirements on its HOME and ESG
programs in partnership with HUD, which must be satisfied by non-federal sources, Recognized match

income represents match revenue (ESG) or unearned match revenue (HHIOME) recognized to the extent
match expense is incurred.

Housing bond fees (MRB/MCC/SF) — The SHTF recognizes housing bond issuance fee income for

various housing bond allocations at closing: Mortgage Revenue Bonds (MRB), Mortgage Credit
Certificates (MCC), and Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds (SF).

PAB multifamily allocation fees — The SHTF recognizes Private Activity Bond (PAB) issuance fee
income for PAB authority used for multi-family housing activities at closing.

Interest income — KHRC Operations and the SHTF recognize interest income on vatious program loans
receivable.

Other income — KHRC Operations recognizes in-kind payroll support and reimbursement of select
expenses from the Department of Corrections for the Offender Reentry Program positions.

Federal program revenues — Federal program revenues represent subsidy (pass-through) proceeds and
other financial assistance received by KHRC and subsequently transferred to or spent on behalf of
secondary (subgrantee) recipients. Revenues of the federal pass-through subsidy programs equal

expenses of the pass-through subsidy programs resulting in a net effect, on KHRC Operations’ financial
plan of zero.

State _program revenues — State program revenues represent subsidy (pass-through) proceeds and other
financial assistance received by KHRC and transferred to or spent on behalf of secondary (subgrantee)
receipts. Revenues of the state pass-through subsidy programs generally do not equal expenses of the

pass through subsidy programs, since revenue is recognized when received and expenses are recognized
when paid.

Operating Expense Descriptions

Salaries and wages — Includes all KHRC staff salaries and wages (includes regular pay, holiday pay, leave
pay, etc.).

Employee benefits ~ Includes all KHRC employee benefits, including group health insurance and
employer payroll taxes.
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Communications — Includes local, long distance, and cellular telephone charges, plus State central mail
and inter-building mail postage.

Advertising and printing — Includes printing and copying charges for the State printer and commercial
printers, plus advertising costs for various program notifications and classified advertising for staff.

Rents — Includes renis for the KPERS office building and garage, equipment, software, and other
miscellaneous rents.

Equipment and meaintenance repairs — Includes computer equipment maintenance contracts and other
repairs,

Travel — Includes travel costs for compliance monitoring and customer training, conference registration
fees, and conference travel.

Fees - professional and other services — Includes fees for afttorneys, auditors, inspections, rent
comparability studies, software training, specialized training, and Section 8 voucher processing, Also
includes dues, memberships, commercial insurance coverage, and other miscellaneous fees and services.

Office and data processing supplies — Includes stationery, office supplies, and data processing supplies.

Expensed furniture and equipment — Includes expensed office furniture, software, and equipment (items
not meeting the fixed asset capitalization policy threshold of $5,000 per item or bulle purchases desmed
material).

Recognized match expense — KHRC Operations incurs match requirements on its HOME and ESG
programs in partnership with HUD, which must be satisfied by non-federal sources. Recognized match
expense represents the amount of match expense incurred on HOME and ESG program draws.

Program_expenses — Includes Kansas Accessibility Modification Program (ICAMP) grants, Emergency

Repair Program (ERP) grants, and other miscellaneous grants funded by KHRC Operations or SHTF non-
state pass-through resources.

Provision for loan losses — Represents an estimate of program loan receivable principal and interest when,
in management’s opinion, it is probable KHRC will be unable to collect all amounts due according fo the
contractual terms of the loan agreement.

Depreoiation — Represents a systematic and rational allocation of cost over an asset’s estimated useful life

for those items meeting KHRC’s fixed asset capitalization policy (i.e., any single item costing $5,000 or

more, ot bulk purchases deemed material).

Non-operating Revenue Description

Non-operating revenues generally include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange
transactions such as investment income.
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" INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Kansas Housing Resources Corporation
! Topeka, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each major fund of the Kansas Housing

Resources Corporation (KHRC), a Component Unit of the State of Kansas, as of and for the year

ended June 30, 2009 which collectively comprise KHRC's basic financial statements as listed in the

table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of KHRC's management. Our

: responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior

| year summarized comparative information has been derived from KHRC's 2008 financial
statements and, in our report dated October 31, 2008 we expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements. ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
i provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

- respective financial position of each major fund of the Kansas Housing Resources Corpaoration as of

: June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 20, 2009, on our consideration of Kansas Housing Resources Corporation’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
! regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
' describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or
; on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
! Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

| The management's discussion and analysis and required supplementary information as listed on
I the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
| ] States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required -
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

i RSM McGladrey Network

Anlndependently Owned Member
= -+




Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
awhole. The supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Berberich Trahan & Co., P.A. Aiten, Gibbs & Houlik, LL.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

October 20, 2009
Wichita, Kansas
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

This annual financial report of the Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) consists of
three sections: required supplementary information, basic financial - statements, and
supplementary information. This section of the report presents management's discussion and
analysis (MD&A) of financial position and changes in financial position for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009. This information is being presented to provide additional information regarding
the activities of KHRC and to meet the disclosure requirements of Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements — and
Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governiments; GASB Statement
No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus; and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures.

KHRC is a self-supporting entity and utilizes enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. This analysis should be read in conjunction with the Independent Auditors’
Report, audited financial statements, and accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Effective July 1, 2007 KHRC reported separately KHRC Operations and activities of the State
Housing Trust Fund (SHTF). This separate reporting provides an increased level of
understanding for KHRC Operations and SHTF activities. KHRC Operations are defined as fee
for service and federal and state grant administration, while SHTF activities include funding
KHRC receives based solely on its designation as the provider of housing services for the State
of Kansas. KHRC administers the SHTF on behalf of the State of Kansas.

KHRC Operations

o Total assets were $15.6 million at June 30, 2009, an increase of 12.8 percent from fiscal
year 2008.

e Total revenues were $80.6 million in fiscal year 2009, an increase of 16.4 percent from
fiscal year 2008. Excluding federal program revenues, total revenues were $6.6 million
in fiscal year 2009, an increase of 4.6 percent from fiscal year 2008.

« Total expenses were $79.7 million in fiscal year 2009, an increase of 17.2 percent from
fiscal year 2008. Excluding federal program expenses, total expenses were $5.7 million
in fiscal year 2009, an increase of 12.5 percent from fiscal year 2008.

o Operating income was approximately $893,000 in fiscal year 2009 compared to
operating income of $1.2 million in fiscal year 2008, a decrease of approximately
$346,000.

« Net assets were $6.2 million at June 30, 2009, a decrease of 2.0 percent from fiscal year
2008.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT’S' DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

KHRC Operations
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

State Housing Trust Fund

Total assets were $9.8 million at June 30, 2009, a decrease of 22.3 percent from fiscal
year 2008.

Total revenues were $4.2 million in fiscal year 2009, a decrease of 63.9 percent from
fiscal year 2008. Excluding state program revenues, total revenues were approximately
$170,000 in fiscal year 2009, a decrease of 93.4 percent from fiscal year 2008.

Total expenses were $8.7 million in fiscal year 2009, an increase of 21.5 percent from
fiscal year 2008. Excluding state program expenses, total expenses were $4.5 million in
fiscal year 2009, a decrease of 6.1 percent from fiscal year 2008.

Operating income (loss) was $(4.5) million in fiscal year 2009 compared to operating
income of $4.4 million in fiscal year 2008, a decrease of approximately $8.9 million.

Net assets were $9.4 million at June 30, 2009, a decrease of 23.7 percent from fiscal
year 2008. ’

State Housing Trust Fund
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

State Housing Trust Fund
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Balance Sheet answers the question, "How is our financial health at the end of the year?"
This statement includes all assets and liabilities of KHRC, both financial and capital, short-term
and long-term, using the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement
focus, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. The resulting
net assets presented in the statement are displayed as restricted or unrestricted. Assets .are
restricted when their use is subject to external limits such as legal agreements or statutes.
Assets falling outside this category are characterized as unrestricted. Over time, changes in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of KHRC is improving or
deteriorating.

Al of the current year's revenues and expenses of KHRC are accounted for in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. This statement measures the activities of
KHRC's operations over the past year and presents the excess of revenues over expenses and
changes in net assets. It can be used to determine whether KHRC has successfully recovered
all of its costs through loans, externally funded programs, and other revenue sources. This
statement helps answer the question, "Is KHRC as a whole better off or worse off as a result of
the year's activities?"

The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about the
sources and uses of KHRC's cash and the change in cash balance during the reporting period.
This statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes resulting from operating,
capital and related financing, non-capital financing, and investing activities. It provides answers
to such questions as "Where did cash come from?", "What was cash used for?", and "What was
the change in cash balance during the reporting period?"

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements follow the basic financial statements.



! KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
: (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
i Year Ended June 30, 2009
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Balance Sheets

The following table presents condensed balance sheets at June 30, 2009 and 2008:

Increase

{Decrease)
2009 2008 2009 vs, 2008
Assets
Current assets
Restricted § 7,701,745 $ 9884115 § (2,182,370)
Unrestricted 8,975,302 9,535,439 (560,137)
Noncurrent
Net capital assets 347,248 366,575 (19,327)
Restricted 6,739,259 5,881,594 857,665
Unrestricted 1,569,437 714,153 855,284
Total assets $ 25332991 $ 26381876 $ (1 ,048,885)
Liabilities
. Current liabilities
E Restricted $ 2882042 $ 1906383 $ 976,559
Unrestricted 570,065 564,356 5,708
Noncurrent liabilities
Restricted 6,226,208 5,229,808 996,400
Unrestricted 54,744 28,434 26,310
Total liabilities 9,733,959 7,728,981 2,004,978
Net assets
: Invested in capital assets 347,248 366,575 (19,327)
. Restricted 6,229,719 8,629,517 (2,399,798)
s Unrestricted 9,022,065 9,656,803 (634,738)
| Total net assets 15,699,032 18,652,895 (3,053,863)
Total liabilities and
net assets $ 25332001 $ 26381876 $ (1 ,048,885)
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Total assets, liabilities, and net assets: The $2,182,370 decrease in restricted current assets
is due to reduced restricted cash and investment balances for State Finance Council (SFC)
disaster assistance and the KEEP loan program. The SFC disaster funds decreased $427,004,
while the KEEP loan program funds decreased $1,760,161 due to loans issued during the year
plus state refund for the balance of the KEEP loan program. Due to the Kansas Corporation
Commission establishing an ARRA-funded program that duplicates KEEP, the KHRC-
administered KEEP program ceased at the end of 2009, and the balance of the KEEP revolving
loan program funds were remitted to the State of Kansas State General Fund. KEEP loan
repayments going forward will be used for other SHTF loans and grants.

The $560,137 net decrease in unrestricted current assets is due primarily to a $1.7 million
decrease in cash and investments primarily for Kansas Accessibility Modification and
Emergency Repair Program grant payments and a $1.2 million increase in accounts receivable
primarily for the federal Residential Appliance Replacement Program.

The $857,665 increase in restricted noncurrent assets is primarily due to increases in HOME
match credits, while the $996,400 increase in restricted noncurrent liabilities is due to increases
in HOME match unearned revenue.

The $855,284 increase in unrestricted noncurrent assets is due to classification of the Kansas
Energy Efficiency Program (KEEP) loans from restricted loans in 2008 to unrestricted loans in
2009 due to closure of the KEEP program at the end of 2009 with KEEP loan repayments going
forward to be used for other loans and grants.

The $976,559 increase in restricted current liabilities is primarily due to increased grants
payable for the Residential Appliance Replacement Program.

Net assets decreased by $3,053,863, or 16.4 percent from fiscal year 2008, primarily due to
payment of program expenses for disaster assistance and the Kansas Accessibility Modification
and Emergency Repair Programs and state refund for the balance of the KEEP loan program

funds.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

KHRC Operations and State Housing Trust Fund (Combined)
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For the next three fiscal years, KHRC will manage over $135 million in federal ARRA allocations
that provide financial assistance for Tax Credit developments, improve residential energy
efficiency, help prevent homelessness, and expand community action activities across the State
of Kansas. While KHRC will be focused to maximize the impact of these time-sensitive funds,
KHRC's challenge will continue to be identifying longer term funding opportunities to meet
Kansans' housing needs.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

The following table presents condensed statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
assets for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008:

Revenues

Operating revenues
Fees for services
Grant administration
Recognized match income
MRB/MCC bond fees
Contributions and donations
Other income
Federal program revenues
Federal loan proceeds
State program revenues
State loan proceeds

Investment income

Total revenues

Expenses
Operating expenses

Salaries, general and
administrative

Provision for bad debts
Provision for loan losses
Program expenses
Recognized match expense
Federal program expenses
State program expenses
State refunds

Total expenses

Transfers in
Transfers out

Excess of revenues over expenses

Total net assets, beginning of year

Total net assets, end of year

Increase
(Decrease)
2008 2008 2009 vs.2008
3 3,499,355 $ 3,396,346 $ 103,009
1,638,269 1,431,041 207,218
1,320,018 991,392 328,626
45,098 1,210,648 (1,165,550)
- 909,489 (909,489)
290,366 320,971 (30,605)
73,988,144 62,925,875 11,062,469
- 349,500 (349,500)
4,000,000 9,000,000 (5,000,000)
- 285,000 (285,000)
600,052 593,502 6,550
85,381,292 81,413,564 3,867,728
4,445,597 3,897,729 547,868
237,354 - 237,354
1,180,233 2,809,454 (1,629,221)
2,023,047 2,079,754 (56,707)
1,320,018 991,392 328,626
74,053,657 63,075,625 10,978,032
4,175,249 2,340,085 1,835,154
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
88,435,155 75,194,049 13,241,106
1,401,653 1,600,734 (199,08)
(1,401,653) (1,600,734) 199,081
(3,053,863) 6,219,515 (9,273,378)
18,652,895 12,433,380 6,219,515
$ 15599032 $ 18,652,805 § (3,053,863)
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets: The majority of KHRC’s revenue is from
federal and state program revenues, fees for services, and grant administration, which produce
approximately 98 percent of KHRC's revenues.

From 2008 to 2009, fees for services increased from $3,396,346 to $3,499,355, or $103,009.
This increase is due to an increase in Asset Management fees.

The $1,165,550 decrease in MRB/MCC hond fees is due to the collapse of the financial market.
During this period, the Sedgwick and Shawnee County MRB programs effectively ceased
operations.

The $909,489 decrease in contributions and donations income is the result of HUD
Restructured loans/donations donated to KHRC through the Office of Affordable Housing
Preservation per Section 517 (a)(5) of the Multifamily Assisted Housing Restructuring Act of
1997 in 2008.

Federal program revenues and expenses increased by $10,978,032 due to increased grant
payments for several ongoing programs and approximately $3,000,000 from the Federal
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Federal program revenues and expenses
represent subsidy (pass-through) proceeds and other financial assistance received by KHRC
and transferred to or spent on behalf of secondary recipients. Revenues of the pass-through
subsidy programs equal expenses of the pass-through subsidy programs resulting in a net
effect, on KHRC's financial statements, of zero. The federal programs, along with the Housing
Tax Credit program, are an integral part of achieving the objectives of KHRC. KHRC continues
to take advantage of federal government programs that serve its mission by utilizing those that
provide resources that leverage its net assets and other resources to finance affordable rental
and owner-occupied housing for Kansans.

The $5,000,000 decrease in state program revenues is due to receipt of $5,000,000 from the
State of Kansas State Finance Council in 2008. These state program funds represent subsidy
(pass-through) grant proceeds received by KHRC and transferred to or spent on behalf of
secondary recipients. The funds are recognized as revenue upon receipt from the State and
are recognized as expense when transferred to or spent on behalf of secondary recipients.

The $1,629,221 decrease in provision for loan losses is due to receipt of the donated HUD
restructured loans of $909,489, in 2008 and issuance of fewer disaster and other housing
assistance loans in 2009. Loan amounts are included in the provision when it is probable
KHRC will be unable to collect all amounts due per contractual agreement.

The $1,835,154 net increase in state program expenses is due primarily to an increase in
Housing Development Grant Program assistance of $4,036,963 and reduced disaster
assistance of $2,201,809 in 2009.

The $1,000,000 increase in state refunds is due to remittance of the balance of the KEEP
revolving loan program funds to the State of Kansas State General Fund as the KHRC-
administered KEEP program ceased at the end of 2009 due to the Kansas Corporation
Commission establishing an ARRA-funded program that duplicates KEEP.

11
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

Transfers in and Transfers out totaling $1,401,653 represent transfers between KHRC
Operations and the State Housing Trust Fund (SHTF) as follows: $1,250,000 from KHRC

i Operations to the SHTF for discretionary funding, $54,297 from KHRC Operations to the SHTF
for state program administration, $57,654 from the SHTF to KHRC Operations for HOME match
loans, $17,600 from KHRC Operations to the SHTF and $22,102 from the SHTF to KHRC
Operations for other miscellaneous transfers.

KHRC's net assets decreased $3,053,863, or 16.4 percent, from 2008 to 2009 primarily due to

| payment of program expenses for disaster assistance and the Kansas Accessibility Modification
and Emergency Repair Programs, and state refund for the balance of the KEEP revolving loan
program funds.

KHRC Operations and State Housing Trust Fund (Combined)
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

KHRC Operations and State Housing Trust Fund (Combined)
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Year Ended June 30, 2009

ECONOMIC FACTORS

If federal funding were to decrease significantly, it would seriously affect KHRC'’s ability to
administer programs and deliver services.

CONTACTING KHRC’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide stakeholders in KHRC with a general overview of
KHRC’s finances and to show KHRC's accountability for the resources it receives, invests, and
expends. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information,
please contact Susan James, Controller, at Kansas Housing Resources Corporation,
611 Kansas Avenue, Suite 300, Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803, or visit our website at

www.kshousingcorp.org.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

5' BALANCE SHEETS

Junie 30, 2009 and 2008
) ASSETS
1
’ 2009 2008
KHRC State Housing
Currentassets Operations Trust Fund Total Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash $ 40,195 $ - 40,195 4,316,517
Unrestricted cash 1,204,422 - 1,204,422 1,319,374
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,244,617 - 1,244,817 5,635,891
Investments
Restricted Investments - 5,820,797 5,820,797 3,679,336
Unrestricted investments 3,227,514 2,158,938 5,386,452 6,995,076
Tofal investments 3,227,514 7,979,735 11,207,249 10,674,412
Accounts receivable ' 2,155,039 2,217 2,157,256 995,851
Other accrued Interest recelvable 64 143 207 10,410
Prepalds 13,959 318 14,277 41,211
Program loans accrued interest recelvable - 15,064 15,064 28,725
Program loans receivable - 197,624 197,624 144,792
Restricled current assets:

Program loans accrued interest receivable 5499 - 5,499 9,895

Program loans receivable 35,264 - 35,254 269,737

HOME maich credits 1,800,000 - 1,800.000 1,608,530

Total current assets 8,481,945 8,195 101 16,677,047 19,419,554
Noncurrent assets
Restricted noncurrent assets:

HOME match credits 6,226,208 - 6,226,208 5,229,808
Security deposit 12,635 - 12,635 12,635
Program loans accrued interest receivable - - - £,774
Program loans receivable

Restricted 490,436 22,615 513,051 701,786

Unrestricted - 1,556,802 1,556,802 645,744
Property and equipment

Furniture and equipment 660,059 - 660,059 549,168

Vehicles 12,428 - 12,428 12,428

Leasehold improvements 48,515 - 48,515 48,515

Less accumulated depreciation (373.754) - (373,754) (243,534)

Net property and equipment 347,248 - 347,248 366,575
Total noncurrent assets 7,076,527 1,579417 8,655,944 6,962,322
Total assets $ 15,558,473 ¢ 9,774,518 25,332,991 26,381,878

’ LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabllities
Accounts payable $ 82370 $ 11,983 94,353 102,338
Accrusd salaries and wages 149,092 5375 154,467 120,080
Granis payable - 172,145 172,145 200,585
Compensated absences 142,222 6,878 149,100 141,343
Current liabllities payable from restricted assets:

Housing conference liabllity - 27,627 27,627 -

HOME match unearned revenue 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 1,608,630

Grants payable 953,348 101,967 1,085315 297,853

Total current fiabllities 3,127,032 325,975 3.453.007 2,470,739
Noncurrent llabllities
Net OPEB Obligation 52,597 2,147 54,744 28,434
HOME match unearned revenue
Restricted 6,226,208 - 6,226,208 5,229,808
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,278,808 2,147 6,280,852 5,258,242
Total liabilties 9,405,837 328,122 9,733,959 7,728,981
Net assets
Invested in capltal assets 347,248 - 347,248 366,575
Restricted 488,275 5,741,444 6,229,719 8,629,517
Unrestricted 5,317,113 3,704,852 9,022,065 8,656,803
Total net assets 6,152,636 9,446,396 15,589,032 18,652,895
Total llabllities and netassels _$ 16,658,473 § 9,774,518 $ 25332,991 26,381,876

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

‘ 2009 2008
: KHRC State Housing
QOperations Trust Fund Total Total
Operating revenues:
Fees for services $ 3,499,355 § - $§ 3,499,355 $ 3,396,346
Grant administration income 1,638,259 - 1,638,259 1,431,041
Recognized match income 1,320,018 - 1,320,018 991,392
MRB/MCC bond fees - 45,098 45,098 1,210,648
PAB multifamily allocation fees - - - 52,400
1 Program loan and other interest 63,491 100,170 163,661 150,657
Contributions and donations - - - 909,489
Other income 101,897 24,808 126,705 117,914
Federal program revenues 73,988,144 - 73,988,144 62,925,675
Federal loan proceeds - - - 349,500
State program revenues - 4,000,000 4,000,000 9,000,000
State loan proceeds - - - 285,000
Total operating revenues 80,611,164 4,170,076 84,781,240 80,820,062
Operating expenses:
Salaries and related payroll expenses 2,766,119 171,159 2,937,278 2,650,433
. Communication ’ 45,269 2,634 47,903 42,746
i Printing and advertising 35,243 1,558 36,801 24,112
' Rents and parking fees 210,813 12,464 223,277 225,484
Repairs and maintenance 35,948 1,738 37,686 22,055
. Travel 185,136 8,752 193,888 175,029
Fees - professional and other services 504,601 160,673 665,274 523,604
Insurance 13,102 548 13,650 13,348
Office and data processing supplies 65,264 4,460 69,724 85,611
. Expensed furniture and equipment 86,899 2,997 89,896 37,828
i Provision for bad debts 237,354 - 237,354 -
Provision for loan losses 28,735 1,151,498 1,180,233 2,809,454
Depreciation 130,220 - 130,220 97,478
Program expenses - 2,023,047 2,023,047 2,079,754
3 Recognized match expense 1,320,018 - 1,320,018 991,392
. Federal program expenses 73,988,144 - 73,988,144 62,925,675
: Federal program income grant expenses 65,513 - 65,513 149,950
State program expenses - 4,175,249 4,175,249 2,340,096
) State refunds - 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
J, Total operating expenses 79,718,378 8,716,777 88,435,155 75,194,049
Operating income (loss) 892,786 (4,546,701) (3,653,915) 5,626,013
! Nonoperating revenues and expenses:
Investment income 221,606 378,446 600,052 593,502
i Total nonoperating revenues 221,606 378,446 600,052 593,502
Transfers in 79,756 1,321,897 1,401,653 1,600,734
Transfers out (1,321,897) (79,756) (1,401,653) (1,600,734)
‘ Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
| expenses (127,749)  (2.926,114)  (3,053,863) 6,219,515
Net assefs, beginning of year 5,280,385 12,372,510 18,652,895 12,433,380
| :
i / Net assets, end of year $ 6,152,636 $ 0,446,396 § 15,599,032 $ 18,652,895

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

Cash flows from operating activitles:
Cash received from others
Cash paid to others
Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Transfers In from other funds
Transfers out to other funds
Net cash from noncapital and related financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash from capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchase of investments
Investment income
Net cash from Investing activities

Net change in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating Income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash from

operating actlvities:

Depreciation

Provision for bad debts

Provision for loan losses

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Prepalds
Program foans recelvable
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Housing conference liability
Grants payable
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation

Net cash from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2009 2008
KHRC State Housing
Operations Trust Fund Total Total

$ 78,118,087 § 3,702,128 § 81,820,215 $ 80,097,022
(77,564,161) (8,603,650) (86,167,811) (73,044,012)
553,926 (4,901,522) (4,347,596) 7,053,010

79,756 1,321,897 1,401,653 1,600,734
(1,321,897) (79,756) (1,401,653) (1,600,734)
(1,242,141) 1,242,141 - -
(110,893) - (110,893) (97,019)
(110,893) - (110,893) (97,019)

5,000,000 8,359,465 13,359,465 5,193,141
(4,797,725) (9,220,675)  (14,018,400) {13,401,100)
221,605 504,545 726,150 569,816
423,880 (356,665) 67,215 (7,638,143)
(375,228) (4,016,046) (4,391,274) (682,152)
1,619,845 4,016,046 5,635,891 6,318,043

$ 1,244,617 3 - 1,244,617 3 5,635,891
$ 892,786 $ (4,546,701) (3,653,915) $ 5,626,013
130,220 - 130,220 97,478

237,354 - 237,354 -

28,735 1,151,498 1,180,233 2,809,454
(1,397,355) (1,404) (1,398,759) 1,394,823
(26,020) (55.121) (81,141) (86,772)
12,570 14,365 26,935 {3,985)
(28,344) (1,577,286) . (1,605,630) (2,935,678)
{15,930) 7,944 (7,986) (72,643)

32,742 1,635 34,377 16,683

- 27,627 27,627 -

655,495 73,527 729,022 195,008
- - - (42,460)

6,941 816 7,757 26,655

24,732 1,578 26,310 28,434

$ 553,026 $ (4,901,522) (4,347,596) $ 7,053,010
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES '

Reporting Entity

Kansas Housing Resources Corporation (KHRC) was established pursuant to Executive

Reorganization Order No. 30 dated February 10, 2003 (ERO 30), and 2003 Kansas Senate Bill
No. 285 (SB 285) which transferred the Division of Housing of the Kansas Department of
Commerce and Housing to the Kansas Development Finance Authority (KDFA), effective July 1,
2003 to be organized in accordance with the Kansas Development Finance Authority Act (KDFA
Act), K.S.A. 74-8901 et seq., as amended. KHRC was incorporated, effective July 1, 2003, by
the KDFA to be a subsidiary corporation in accordance with the provisions of K.S.A. 74-8904
(v). That statute further provides that the Board members of KDFA shall constitute all the Board
members of KHRC, and KDFA is the sole member of KHRC. KHRC is an independent
instrumentality of the State of Kansas and a public body politic and corporate. ’

KHRC’s mission is to enhance Kansas communities with housing opportunities. This goal is
achieved through using a variety of strategies and approaches, including increasing home
ownership opportunities, leveraging the construction of affordable rental housing, promoting
energy efficiency improvements for owner-occupied and rental housing, providing affordable
housing through rental assistance to low-income families and senior citizens, and creating
housing opportunities for underserved persons and communities.

To accomplish its objectives, KHRC has the rights, powers, privileges, and duties conferred by
ERO 30, SB 285, and its articles of incorporation and bylaws. These include making bylaws
and adopting rules and regulations to carry out the purposes of KHRC; acquiring, holding, and
disposing of real and personal property for its corporate purposes; appointing officers, agents
and employees; entering into contracts and agreements; collecting fees and charging for its
services; accepting gifts, grants, loans and other aid: investing moneys; procuring insurance,
and providing technical assistance and advice to the State of Kansas or political subdivisions of
the State.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
reporting entity include: (1) the primary government, (2) organizations for which the government
is financially accountable, and (3) other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary government are such that the exclusion would cause the
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. KHRC is financially accountable to the
State, and the State exercises oversight responsibility on financial interdependency and
accountability for fiscal matters and scope of public service. KHRC is included in the State's
financial reporting entity, and KHRC's transactions are reported in the State’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report as a component unit.

KHRC does not have any component units as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, an Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB).

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with KHRC's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2008, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Basis of Accounting

KHRC's activities meet the definition of an enterprise fund because it is the intent of KHRC to
recover, primarily through user charges and grant reimbursement, the cost of providing goods or
services to the general public.

Transactions are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are
included on the Balance Sheet. The operating statements present increases (e.g.; revenues)
and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized.
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recognized when the liability is incurred.

KHRC distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

As required by GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, KHRC has
elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions
issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless FASB and/or APB pronouncements conflict with
or contradict GASB pronouncements.

KHRC Operations

KHRC defines KHRC Operations as fee for service, federal and state grant administration, and
other activities that have the characteristics of an exchange transaction.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
State Housing Trust Fund

The State Housing Trust Fund (SHTF) was established by House Bill No. 2517 as a vehicle to
deposit housing funds and provide necessary match for the HOME program. Now codified at
KSA 74-8959, the SHTF legislation contains few requirements and funding sources and
essentially created a discretionary, interest-bearing trust account for the purpose of housing
programs and services. These include repair and rehabilitation of existing housing, accessibility
modification, and assistance to low-income or disabled persons. The Statute also allows KHRC
to maintain and invest funds outside of the State Treasury and apply for and receive grants,
gifts, and donations.

KHRC defines SHTF funding sources as funding KHRC receives based solely on its designation
as the provider of housing services for the State of Kansas. SHTF sources do not include fee
for service, federal and state grant administration, or other activities that have the characteristics
of an exchange transaction. .

Pending Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

At June 30, 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued a
statement not yet implemented by KHRC that might impact KHRC as follows:

GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets was issued
in June 2007. This statement provides guidance on how to identify, account for, and report
intangible assets. The new standard characterizes an intangible asset as an asset that lacks
physical substance, is nonfinancial in nature, and has an initial useful life extending beyond a
single reporting period. Examples of intangible assets include easements, computer software,
water rights, timber rights, patents, and trademarks. The statement provides that intangible
assets be classified as capital assets (except for those explicitly excluded from the scope of the
new standard, such as capital leases). Relevant authoritative guidance for capital assets should
be applied to these intangible assets. The provisions of this statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2009, and for the most part require retroactive application.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related Parties

KHRC reimbursed KDFA for shared staff-related expenses incurred during the year. In addition,
KHRC purchases goods, supplies, and services from other State agencies or entities for
administrative and office purposes.

Programs

The following is a brief description of significant programs financed by Federal, State and
KHRC-funded grants over which KHRC exercises fiscal and administrative control:

Rental Housing Program (Tax Credit) — The Rental Housing Program is designed to
secure private equity capital for the development of affordable rental housing through tax
incentives rather than direct subsidies. Enacted in the Tax Reform Act of 1986, the tax
credit is a ten-year federal tax credit against a taxpayer's ordinary income tax liability
available to individuals (directly or through partnerships) and corporations who acquire
or develop and own the affordable rental housing properties. The tax credit historically
provides as much as 55-60 percent of the total development cost, which reduces the
amount of debt financing in affordable rental housing developments. This allows lower
rents and greater flexibility. KHRC receives application, service, and compliance
monitoring fees from developers and owners who participate in the Tax Credit program.

Federal Grant-Funded Programs:

Credit Exchange Program (CEP) — Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act
(ARRA), KHRC will be allowed to “swap” or exchange all returned tax credits from
previous years as well as up to 40 percent of its 2009 per capita authority for cash, to
enable developments which have been unable to obtain equity, in the current market, to
complete their affordable housing projects under CEP also known as the “Section 1602
Funding Program” funded by the U.S. Treasury. KHRC will utilize the CEP swap option
to enable developments to be completed. KHRC receives asset management service
fees from owners who participate in the program.

Section 8 Contract Administration Program (Asset Management) — KHRC is the Section
8 Contract Administrator for project-based Section 8 properties in Kansas. The program
also provides the Section 8 housing assistance payment to participating owners on
behalf of eligible tenants to provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing at rents they can
afford. KHRC receives fees from HUD to administer the program and incentive-based
administrative fees based on the number of units under contract and KHRC's
performance level compared to HUD's acceptable quality levels of administration.
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KANSAS HOUSING RESOURCES CORPORATION
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF KANSAS)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) — Congress created the HOME program
as pairt of the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 and is funded by HUD. The intent
of the HOME Program is to pro